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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRHREREEE &k

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of National Investments
Fund Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Review Period”).

The Company is an investment company and the Group is principally
engaged in investments in a diversified portfolio of listed and unlisted
companies.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the Review Period, the Group’s revenue recorded a net loss of
approximately HK$27,193,000 (for the year ended 31 December
2014 (“Last Corresponding Period”): net gain of approximately
HK$56,480,000). Excluding the net loss of approximately
HK$29,776,000 (Last Corresponding Period: net gain of approximately
HK$54,397,000) recorded on the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), the Group’s revenue increased by approximately
24% to approximately HK$2,583,000 (Last Corresponding Period:
revenue of approximately HK$2,083,000). The proceeds on sales
of equity and debt securities were approximately HK$110,693,000
(Last Corresponding Period: the proceeds on sales of equity and
debt securities and commodities futures contracts of approximately
HK$183,620,000), and the cost of sales were approximately
HK$140,252,000 (Last Corresponding Period: approximately
HK$162,706,000). The net realised loss on financial assets at FVTPL
was therefore approximately HK$29,559,000 (Last Corresponding
Period: net realised gain on financial assets at FVTPL of approximately
HK$20,914,000). Apart from the net realised loss on financial assets
at FVTPL, the unrealised loss on financial assets at FVTPL was
approximately HK$217,000 (Last Corresponding Period: unrealised gain
on financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$33,483,000).

For the Review Period, the loss attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$310,169,000 (Last Corresponding Period:
approximately HK$108,094,000). The loss was primarily attributable to
(i) a net loss of approximately HK$29,776,000 recorded on the financial
assets at FVTPL (Last Corresponding Period: a net gain of approximately
HK$54,397,000); (i) loss on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately
HK$18,415,000 (Last Corresponding Period: approximately
HK$2,050,000); (iii) loss on disposal of available-for-sale financial
assets of approximately HK$127,138,000 (Last Corresponding Period:
HK$NIl); (iv) impairment loss of other tangible assets of approximately
HK$3,054,000 (Last Corresponding Period: HK$Nil); and (v) shared
loss of associates of approximately HK$8,743,000 (Last Corresponding
Period: approximately HK$6,062,000).
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECT

Affected by China’s economy, Hong Kong’s economy also experienced
decline and adjustment. With the Hong Kong stock market entering
into a period of adjustment and down cycle, the investment sentiment
is less satisfactory and it is expected that the stock market will remain
challenging in 2016. The Group will continue to implement diversified
investment strategies and to identify suitable investment opportunities
with potential assets appreciation to generate better returns for the Group
and the shareholders of the Company. The Group will also continue to
adopt and maintain a prudent yet proactive investment approach and will
closely monitor the performance of the investment portfolios. The Group
remains positive on the prospects of its investments and is confident
that shareholders of the Company will be rewarded with strong positive
returns under our investment portfolios in the future.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
Review Period (Last Corresponding Period: Nil).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$8,419,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014: approximately
HK$16,489,000).

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had issued promissory notes
in the aggregate amount of HK$110,000,000. Eleven promissory notes
in the denomination of HK$10,000,000 each were issued to eleven
independent third parties. Each promissory note bears interest at a rate
of 5% per annum with a maturity period of seven years from the date of
issue. The net proceeds were used for investment in securities and as
general working capital of the Group.

The net current assets held by the Group as at 31 December 2015
amounted to approximately HK$63,861,000 (2014: approximately
HK$154,758,000). Save and except the above, the Group had no
other outstanding credit facility from other financial institutions as at 31
December 2015. As all cash and cash equivalents were maintained in
Hong Kong Dollars accounts with banks in Hong Kong, exposure to
exchange fluctuation is considered minimal. The gearing ratio, calculated
on the basis of total liabilities over total equity as at 31 December 2015,
was approximately 1.715 (2014: approximately 0.585).
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TERERER E R M

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FUND RAISING
ACTIVITIES

The shares of the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Changes in the capital structure of
the Company during the Review Period are set out below.

On 11 December 2015, the Company completed a placing of
52,085,920 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each through a placing
agent to not less than six independent investors at a price of HK$0.409
per placing share. The net proceeds of the placing in the amount of
approximately HK$20.45 million, representing a net price approximately
of HK$0.393 per placing share, were used as general working capital of
the Group. Details of the placing were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 4 December 2015 and 11 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, the total number of issued ordinary shares of
the Company was 1,802,260,913 shares (2014: 1,592,035,953 shares).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 31 employees (2014: 34
employees), including executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors. The total employment costs
incurred during the Review Period were approximately HK$23,472,000
(2014: approximately HK$18,773,000). The Group’s remuneration
policies are in line with the prevailing market practice and are determined
based on the performance, level of responsibility and experience of
individual employees.

Further, the Company adopted a share option scheme on 27 August
2007 (the “Share Option Scheme”) as incentives or rewards for the
employees’ contributions to the Company. For further details of the Share
Option Scheme, please refer to the section headed “Interests in Share
Options” in this report.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any material capital
commitments (2014: Nil).
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Bank deposits in the amount of HK$2,020,000 (2014: HK$2,000,000)
were pledged to a bank as security for certain trade credit facilities
granted to the Group.

Save as disclosed above, there were no charges over any of the Group’s
assets or significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2015.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my utmost gratitude to our most valued shareholders and business
partners for their continuous trust and unfailing support. | would also like
to take this opportunity to express our appreciation and gratitude to our
management and staff for their dedication and hard work.

Wong Danny F.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2016
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

FELEREEEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Danny F., aged 53, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 21 May 2007. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Economics and Accounting from China Central University of Finance
and Economics. Mr. Wong has over 20 years of experience in investment
project evaluation, listing planning and asset management. From 2001 to
2005, Mr. Wong was an executive director of Sun Hung Kai International
Limited and was in charge of investment banking and responsible for
public listing of companies and fund raising activities for private and listed
companies. For the period from June 2009 to August 2009, Mr. Wong
was an executive director of Mission Capital Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Poly Capital Holdings Limited) (Stock code: 1141), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange. For the period from February 2014 to June
2014, Mr. Wong served as an executive director and the chairman of
Mascotte Holdings Limited (Stock code: 136), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange. Since 26 November 2014, Mr. Wong has been a non-
executive director of Celyad S.A. (formerly known as Cardio3 Biosciences
S.A) (Symbol: CYAD), a limited liability company listed on NYSE Euronext
Brussels, NYSE Euronext Paris regulated markets as well as the National
Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations (NASDAQ) in the
United States of America in the form of American depository shares.

Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick, aged 74, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 6 January 2004. He also served as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company for the period from 1 November 2005
to 19 May 2014 and the period from 31 August 2015 to 20 March 2016.
Mr. Wu was educated in Hong Kong and the United States with a Master
of Business Administration degree in Finance. He has over 43 years of
experience in insurance, securities business and asset management.
He started his career with Paul Revere Life Insurance Company as an
assistant actuary. He later worked for Fidelity Management and Research
of Boston as an analyst and then moved on to senior positions in
research and fund management with various well-known institutions in
the United States. In the early 80s, Mr. Wu joined and served as a senior
portfolio manager and investment advisor at Bank of America in Hong
Kong. In the 90s, Mr. Wu joined and was elected as a director and senior
consultant of Lippo Securities Group Limited (“Lippo Securities Group”).
He was a member of Lippo Securities Group investment committee
and was responsible for supervising the fund management activities
including futures-related investments of Lippo Securities Group. Mr. Wu is
currently a responsible officer registered under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Fong Chi Wah, aged 53, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 1 November 2005. Mr. Fong is a Certified Practising
Accountant (Australia), a Chartered Financial Analyst and a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute
of Certified Management Accountants, Australia and The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Mr. Fong has over 20 years of extensive experience
in various sectors of financial industry, including direct investment, project
and structured finance and capital markets with focus on the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong. Mr. Fong was previously
a director of Baring Capital (China) Management Limited and held various
management positions in ING Bank. Mr. Fong was previously also an
executive director of Grand Investment International Limited (15 April
2003 (date of incorporation) to 1 April 2006), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Fong has been serving as an independent non-
executive director of China Innovationpay Group Limited (formerly known
as SYSCAN Technology Holdings Limited) since 19 December 2003 and
Real Nutriceutical Group Limited (formerly known as Ruinian International
Limited) since 28 March 2008, both of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gao Chengming, aged 31, holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Statistics from Beijing Normal University and a Master of Finance
degree from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Gao has over five years’
experience in auditing and investment analysis, and used to work at
Guosen Securities (HK) Financial Holdings Company, Limited and
PricewaterhouseCoopers China. Mr. Gao is licensed to carry out Type
1 (Dealing in Securities) and Type 4 (Advising on Securities) regulated
activities under the SFO.

Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny, aged 27, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 17 March 2015. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in marketing management from Purdue University in the United
States of America. Mr. Lau has over three years’ experience in financial
research and analysis, and has worked in Barclays Wealth and UBS
AG. He is a youth committee member of China Federation of Overseas
Chinese Entrepreneurs.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENRAEEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen, aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 22 May 2007.
Mr. Char holds a Bachelor of Laws degree (Honours) from the University
of London, a Master’s degree in Social Sciences (Criminology) from
the University of Hong Kong, a Master’s degree in Social Sciences
(Counselling) from the University of Hong Kong and a Post-graduate
Certificate in Laws from City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Char had been
a Chief Investigator and Senior Assignment Officer of the Independent
Commission Against Corruption in Hong Kong from 1976 to 2004. Mr.
Char was a Chief Executive Officer of Garner Forest Industries Limited.
Mr. Char is a Barrister at Law and an Accredited Mediator. Mr. Char has
been serving as an independent non-executive director of China Uptown
Group Company Limited (stock code: 2330) since September 2015,
which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Liu Jin, aged 40, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 21 May 2007. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor’s
degree in International Economic Law from the Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law. Mr. Liu has been a qualified solicitor in the PRC
since 2001 and has various experience in merger and acquisition and
corporate restructure in the PRC. Mr. Liu is currently a qualified solicitor
practicing in Shenzhen, the PRC.

Mr. Law Tze Lun, aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 12 December 2013. Mr. Law is a
practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong and is currently a
director of ANSA CPA Limited. Mr. Law obtained a Bachelor’s degree
in Commerce (Accounting) from Curtin University of Technology. He is
a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a Certified Practising Accountant
of the CPA Australia. He has over 20 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and finance gained from various accounting firms in Hong
Kong. Mr. Law has been serving as an independent non-executive
director of Come Sure Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 794) since
February 2009 and Gemini Investments (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
174) since November 2010, both of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. During the period from April 2010 to September
2011, Mr. Law served as an independent non-executive director of China
Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited (stock code: 8321),
which was listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Feng Wen, aged 47, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company on 21 March 2016. He graduated from the Medical
Department of the Third Military Medical University in 1992 and holds
a Master’s degree from the School of Public Administration, Renmin
University of China (1 Bl A R X2 ) in 2006. Mr. Feng had worked for
the General Office of the Ministry of Health of the PRC and a number of
military hospitals for over 20 years. Mr. Feng is currently the chairman of
the board of Zhong He Hou De Investment Management Co., Ltd, as well
as an independent non-executive director of Golden Meditech Holdings
Limited (stock code: 801), which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate
governance practices and procedures to safeguard the interests of its
shareholders and enhance the performance of the Group. The Board will
review and improve its corporate governance practices from time to time
to ensure that the Group is under the leadership of an effective Board.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with all
applicable code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except for
the deviation disclosed below. The Company periodically reviews its
corporate governance practices to ensure that the Company complies
with the requirements of the CG Code. The Company acknowledges
the importance of corporate governance and ensures transparency and
accountability of the Company’s operations.

Meetings were held throughout the year and where appropriate,
circulars and other guidance notes were issued to directors and senior
management of the Group to ensure that each and every director and
senior management is aware of the importance of corporate governance.

DEVIATION FROM THE CODE

According to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of
the Board should attend the annual general meeting. In respect of the
annual general meeting held on 4 June 2015 (the “2015 AGM”), Mr.
Wong Danny F.,, the Chairman of the Board, was engaged in an important
business meeting and was not able to attend. However, Mr. Fong Chi
Wah, an executive director of the Company, Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen,
an independent non-executive director of the Company, chairman of
the Nomination Committee and members of the Audit Committee of the
Company, and Mr. Law Tze Lun, an independent non-executive director
of the Company, chairman of the Audit Committee and members of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company,
attended the 2015 AGM and answered questions raised during the 2015
AGM.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board provides leadership, approves policies, strategies and plans
and oversees their implementation to ensure the healthy growth of the
Company and to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
the management will prepare and supply the same to the Board and its
committees. The Company Secretary will render his advice to the Board
so that all the Board procedures and applicable rules and regulations
are followed. The directors may make further enquiries if they are of
the view that the information is not sufficient for them to make an
informed decision. In general, each director is able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances to assist him/her in
discharging his/her duties at the Company’s expenses upon making
such request to the Board.

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a substantial
shareholder or a director, such matter will be discussed in a physical
meeting and will not be dealt with by way of written resolutions.
Independent non-executive directors with no conflict of interest will be
present at meetings to deal with such conflict issues.

The Board committees, including the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, have adopted
the applicable practices and procedures used in Board meetings.

During the Review Period, four Board meetings were held and the
attendance of each director at these meetings is set out in the table under
the section headed “Directors’ Attendance at Shareholders’ Mestings,
Board and Committee Meetings”.
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Delegation by the Board

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to the
entering into of any significant transactions by the abovementioned
officers. The Board has full support from the Chief Executive Officer and
the senior management to discharge its responsibilities.

The Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee have specific terms of reference defining the authorities
and responsibilities of the respective committees. The committees are
required by their respective terms of reference to report to the Board in
relation to their decisions, findings or recommendations, and in certain
specific situations, to seek the Board’s approval before taking any
actions.

The Board reviews, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the Board to
different committees to ensure that such delegations are appropriate and
remain beneficial to the Company as a whole.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged a Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
Policy to provide appropriate coverage for any potential claims against
directors and officers. The insurance policy was renewed in April 2016.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making. All directors devote sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group.

The Board currently comprises eight members, consisting of three
executive directors, two non-executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, directors appointed
to fill casual vacancy shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting after their appointment and shall be subject to re-election
by shareholders. All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.
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With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
with effect from 4 September 2013. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Board comprises the
following directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Danny F. (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick
Mr. Fong Chi Wah

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Yang XiaoFeng (Resigned on 6 July 2015)
Mr. Gao Chengming (Appointed on 4 March 2015)
Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny (Appointed on 17 March 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen
Mr. Liu Jin
Mr. Law Tze Lun

List of directors containing the names of the directors (by category) is
also disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company are appointed
for a term up to the forthcoming annual general meeting subject to
renewal and re-election as and when required under the Listing Rules and
the Articles of Association of the Company. All directors are subject to
retirement from office by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting at least once every three years.
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In accordance with Article 88 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Fong Chi Wah, Mr. Liu Jin and Mr. Law Tze Lun shall retire as directors
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as directors
at the Company’s annual general mesting.

The presence of three independent non-executive directors is considered
by the Board to be a reasonable balance between executive and non-
executive directors. The Board is of the opinion that such balance can
provide adequate checks and balances for safeguarding the interests
of shareholders and of the Group. The non-executive directors provide
the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience so that
independent judgement can effectively be exercised as well as ensuring
that the interests of all shareholders are taken into account. They are also
responsible for participating in Board meetings, dealing with potential
conflicts of interest, serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee and scrutinising the Group’s
performance and reporting. Through their active participation, they
provide their valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board and
the committees on which they serve so that the management process
can be critically reviewed and controlled.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant to
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all its
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to the
Board. Through active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflicts of interest and serving on
Board committees, all independent non-executive directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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APPOINTMENT AND SUCCESSION
PLANNING OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of directors.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of directors and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wong Danny F. serves as the Chairman.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of Chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Ms. Tian Jingjing acted as the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company (“CEQ”) as successor to Mr. Chiu Shung Wai, Vincent with
effect from 21 April 2015 until her resignation on 31 August 2015. During
the interim period from 31 August 2015 to 20 March 2016. Mr. Wu Tse
Wai, Frederick, an executive director and former CEO of the Company,
assumed duties of CEO while the Company was in the course of
identifying suitable candidate for the position. Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick’s
role as CEO was succeeded by Mr. Feng Wen, who was appointed as
CEO of the Company on 21 March 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BRASE EESLERTEST2E
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS, BOARD AND ZEEHER

COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The individual attendance records of each director at shareholders’ BEERFALERREAS EECCEAEEY
meetings, board and committees meetings during the year are set out SERERN T FELREFINAT
below:

Number of meetings attended/held
HE/BTEERY

Audit Remuneration  Nomination

Board  Committee = Committee = Committee AGM EGM

Name of Directors EENS EEg ERZEE FMZEE® REEEE REEATAE RREAAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Danny F. TRESE 4/4 - - - 0A 02
Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick R¥ZRE 4/4 - - - 0/1 072
Mr. Fong Chi Wah FEELE 4/4 - - - 1/ 2/2
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Yang XiaoFeng HBBEERT (R-F—7F

(Resigned on 6 July 2015) +HNAEE) 2/2 - 2/2 - 01 072
M. Gao Chengming BREEE (R=F-2F

(Appointad on 4 March 2015) ZHAAEZE) 33 - - - 0 072
Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny ARELE (R=F—RF

(Appointed on 17 March 2015) ZATtHEZE) 3/3 - - - Al 02
Independent BUFHTES

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen EHREE 4/4 2/2 - 2/2 11 2/2
Mr. Liu Jin ErsE 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 0/1 0/2
Mr. Law Tze Lun BIHEE 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 11 2/2
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PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance. Notices of regular Board
meetings are served to all directors at least 14 days before the meetings,
who were all given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
discussion. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing agenda
for the meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations
in connection with the meetings are observed and complied with. The
finalised agenda and accompanying board papers are then sent to all
directors at least three days prior to the meeting.

During the year, the Chairman held a meeting with non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without the
presence of executive directors. The Board and each director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings, including the record of all
decisions by the Board together with concerns raised and dissenting
views expressed (if any). Draft minutes are normally circulated to directors
for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Articles of Association also contain provisions requiring
directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving transactions in which such directors and/or any of
their associates have a material interest.

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

The annual general meeting and other general meetings of the Company
are the primary forum for communication by the Company with its
shareholders and for shareholders’ participation. All shareholders are
encouraged to attend the general meetings or to appoint proxies to
attend and vote at meetings on their behalf if they are unable to attend the
meetings.

During the Review Period, apart from the 2015 AGM, two other general
meetings were held by the Company on 17 February 2015 and 8 April
2015 respectively.
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

All directors, including non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors, must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
as directors and of the business of the Group. As such, the Group
provides a comprehensive and formal induction to each newly appointed
director upon his/her appointment. Briefings and orientations are
provided and organised to ensure that the new directors have a proper
understanding of and are fully aware of the role of the Board, their legal
and other duties as directors as well as the business and governance
practices of the Group. Such programsnmes are tailored for each individual
director taking into account his/her background and expertise. The
Company Secretary will regularly update all directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all directors.

All directors have participated in continuous professional development
programmes provided or procured by the Group, such as external
seminars organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills in relation to the discharge of their duties as
directors. Details of the trainings received by the respective director,
records of which are kept and updated by the Company Secretary, are as
follows:

EERIIRXE

EES (BEFENTEETRBUIRNITESR)AT
BTHRESEFRESZHAEERAEEERE A
- AEBEREAMTESRERRER—R2EMN
ERZBN WAHEESRERLTHERENA -
NHERNEZ BRI AN IZEFE AR K
SEREFMEAZEEMEMEME UEAKE
ZEBRERAER WEAENERINZEANES
ZESMBEENBAMAREEZTHE - RAAIMEH
ERReRERRHEEELTRMMEMEREE
RERTERZENEN URREEFETZE
MAIRIRE °

PREFCL2EASERRALTHF IHEEEER
B PINBEERERALERZINRERES
NBERMEHAREBTESHRE BB ANBNEK
E-BEZARIBIZLBEHARMERTRE
oBRHBET:

Types of Trainings
Name of Directors BEEnR EINER
Mr. Wong Danny F. TR A A B
Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick RFBELEE A B
Mr. Fong Chi Wah AREELA A B
Ms. Yang XiaoFeng S 7+ A B
Mr. Gao Chengming Sk e A B
Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny BIFEE LA A B
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen BHREE A B
Mr. Liu Jin 2 A A B
Mr. Law Tze Lun EIBEAE A B

A: Attending seminars and/or conferences and/or talks

B: Reading updates on latest development and changes in the Listing
Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements.

Each director will, upon his/her first appointment and thereafter on a
yearly basis, disclose to the Group the number and nature of offices held
by him/her in public companies and organisations and other significant
commitments.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Kim Fai is the Company Secretary of the Company. He has taken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his
skills and knowledge during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors of the Company. Following specific enquiry by
the Company, all directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year
under review.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects.
The Board is also responsible for preparing the accounts of the Company,
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group on
a going-concern basis, announcements related to inside information
and other financial disclosures. The management of the Group provides
all relevant information and records to the Board enabling it to make
the above assessment and to prepare the accounts and other financial
disclosures.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing
auditing firm of the Company within one year from the date of his ceasing
to be a partner or to have any financial interest in the auditing firm.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with its review of the independence of
auditors, their audit process and also the standard of reports aforesaid.
The Audit Committee made recommendations to the Board and that
there was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
during the year under review.

The Audit Committee’s primary duties include ensuring that the Group’s
financial statements, annual, interim and quarterly reports and the
auditors’ report present a true and balanced assessment of the Group’s
financial position, reviewing the Group’s financial control, internal control
and risk management systems, and reviewing the Group’s financial and
accounting policies and practices. Other duties of the Audit Committee
are set out in its specific terms of reference which are available on the
Company’s website.
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The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Liu Jin, Mr. Char Shik
Ngor, Stephen and Mr. Law Tze Lun. Mr. Law Tze Lun serves as the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

During the year, two meetings of the Audit Committee were held to
review the Company’s interim report for the six months ended 30 June
2015 and the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
attendance record of individual members of the Audit Committee are
set out in the table under the section headed “Directors’ Attendance at
Shareholders’ Meetings, Board and Committee Meetings”.

The Company Secretary keeps full minutes of all Audit Committee
meetings. In line with practices consistent with Board meetings and
other committee meetings, draft and final versions of Audit Committee
meeting minutes are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee
for comments, approval and record as soon as practicable after each
meeting.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee as per the terms of reference
include:

° to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
reports;

. to review financial controls, internal controls and risk management
system;

° to review the Company’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

° to review arrangements by which employees can raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters in confidence and to ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for the fair and independent investigation
of such concerns and appropriate follow-up actions; and

° to act as the key representative body to oversee the Company’s
relations with the external auditors.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge
its duties and has access to independent professional advice when
necessary. The Company’s annual report for the year has been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company currently comprises two
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Liu Jin and Mr. Law
Tze Lun. Ms. Yang XiaoFeng had also been member of the Remuneration
Committee during the Review Period until her resignation on 6 July
2015 (for details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
6 July 2015). Mr. Liu Jin serves as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The specific terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee
meets at least once a year. During the year, the Remuneration Committee
convened two meetings and all Remuneration Committee members
(including Ms. Yang XiaoFeng while still a member) attended the
meetings.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee as set out
in the Committee’s terms of reference are as follows:

° to make recommendations to the Board on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy;

° to determine specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment, factors taken into consideration by the Committee
include salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of directors, employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors;

° to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

° to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance with contractual terms
and that such compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive for
the Company;
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° to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
such arrangements are made in accordance with contractual terms
and that any compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

° to advise shareholders on how to vote with respect to any service
contracts of directors that require shareholders’ approval under the
Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee shall be provided with sufficient resources
to enable it to perform its functions and the Remuneration Committee
has right to access professional advice relating to remuneration proposal
when it is considered necessary.

The principle elements of the Company’s remuneration policy for
directors and senior management are:

° to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding that director’s own remuneration;

° to ensure that remuneration packages should be on a par with
companies with which the Company competes for human
resources;

° to ensure that remuneration packages should reflect the
performance and responsibilities of an individual, as well as the
complexity of work; and

° to ensure that remuneration packages should be structured in
such a way which can provide incentives to directors and senior
management to improve their individual performance.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed performance
and remuneration of directors and senior management and made
recommendations to the Board on the remunerative packages of
individual executive directors and senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Char Shik Ngor,
Stephen, Mr. Liu Jin and Mr. Law Tze Lun. Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen
serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Company’s website. The Nomination Committee
meets at least once a year. During the Review Period, the Nomination
Committee convened two meetings and all Nomination Committee
members attended the meetings.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee as per the
terms of reference are as follows:

° to formulate nomination policy for the Board’s consideration and
implement the Board’s approved nomination policy;

° to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individual nominated for directorships;

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

o to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
the succession planning for the Chairman, the CEO as well as the
senior management;

° to do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge its
powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;

° to conform to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
Company’s constitution or imposed by legislation;

° to review the Company’s Board diversity policy and the progress
on achieving the objectives set for implementing the said policy;
and

° to report to the Board on its decisions and recommendations as
and when appropriate and at least once annually.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to enable
the performance of its functions and is allowed to seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expenses where necessary.
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The Nomination Committee performed the following work during the
year:

(i) reviewing the composition of the Board of the Company;

(ii) assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(i) determining the suitability, duties and responsibilities of Ms. Tian
Jingjing as the Chief Executive Officer.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the Review Period, the total remuneration for the audit services
provided by auditors amounted to approximately HK$350,000 (2014:
HK$350,000). No non-audit services were provided by auditors during
the Review Period (2014: HK$170,000).

The re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditors
of the Company has been recommended by the Audit Committee and
endorsed by the Board and is subject to approval by the shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established and the
Board will therefore be responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, etc.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibilities for the system of internal controls
and risk management of the Company and to review its effectiveness.
During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system, covering financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions.
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In such review, the Board has considered factors such as changes since
the last review, scope and quality of the management’s monitoring of
risks, incidence of significant control failings and identified weaknesses,
and effectiveness relating to financial reporting and compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations including the Listing Rules.

During the Review Period, the Company was exposed to market risk for
its available-for-sale financial assets, including the embedded derivatives,
as the Company may not be able to liquidate such investments in time to
meet its cash flow requirements. In response to this situation, the Board
has maintained a portfolio of listed securities and a relatively strong cash
position.

The portfolio of listed securities, classified as financial assets at FVTPL in
the statement of financial position, may be exposed to market price risk.
The Board will continue to monitor the portfolio with an aim to reduce
such risk by diversification.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparation of
financial statements for each financial period which should give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the results and cash
flow for that period. The directors ensure that the financial statements for
the year were prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards, and will ensure that the publication of
which will be in a timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency
and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant
information to its shareholders. The commitments to fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of the Company’s activities can
be reflected in many aspects.

In endeavouring to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders,
the annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board.
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The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed from time
to time to ensure that the Company conforms to the best practices
regarding corporate governance. The notice of annual general meeting
and the relevant circular, which are circulated to all shareholders at
least 21 days prior to the holding of the annual general meeting, set out
the details in relation to each resolution proposed, voting procedures
(including procedures for demanding and conducting a poll) and other
relevant information. At the beginning of the meeting, the chairman
of the meeting indicates to the meeting the level of proxies lodged on
each resolution and the balance for and against such resolution. At the
Company’s 2015 AGM, all the resolutions were put to the vote by poll
and Tricor Tengis Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, was engaged as scrutineer to ensure the votes were properly
counted.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or
the Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish
to propose a resolution may request the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
any one or more shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Where notice of general meeting includes the election of directors of the
Company, any shareholder of the Company may propose the election of
any person as a director of the Company at the annual general meeting.
Pursuant to Article 89 of the Articles of Association of the Company, if
a shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
wishes to propose a person other than a retiring director for election as
a director at any general meeting (including the annual general meeting),
the shareholder should lodge a written notice (the “Nomination Notice”)
signed by the shareholder at the head office or Registration Office (as
defined in the Articles of Association) of the Company not less than seven
clear days but not more than 14 clear days before the date of the general
meeting. The Nomination Notice must be accompanied by a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected as a
director.

The Company also communicates to its shareholders through its
annual and interim reports. The directors, Company Secretary or other
appropriate members of senior management also respond promptly to
inquiries from shareholders and investors.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing
to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure
of corporate information to shareholders and investors. The Company
updates shareholders on its latest business developments and
financial performance through its annual and interim reports and
notices, announcements and circulars. The Company’s website
(www.nif-hk.com) provides a communication platform to the public and
the shareholders.

To strengthen its relationships with investors, the Company regularly
meets with analysts and holds interviews with reporters and columnists of
the press and other economic journals.

Resolution was passed at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company on 8 April 2015 to approve the amendment to the Company’s
Articles of Association by removing the borrowing restrictions contained
in the then Article 111. For details, please refer to the Company’s circular
dated 17 March 2015.

Save and except the above, no other significant changes were made to
the Company’s constitutional documents during the Review Period.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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REPORTING SCOPE

The Company is an investment company and principally engages in
investments in a diversified portfolio of listed and unlisted companies. As
an investment company, the Company does not directly participate in
the production and operation of its subsidiaries. While actively seeking
to optimise its investment portfolio and maximise shareholder return,
the Company lives up to its corporate social responsibility and strikes a
balance between the interests of stakeholders such as the shareholders
and the community, with the ultimate goal of achieving a sustainable
corporation.

In accordance with the requirements of Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules,
the Company hereby presents its environmental, social and governance
report for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Working Environment

Working conditions

Policies on remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, leaves, equal opportunity, diversity and other fringe
benefits

The principal place of business of the Group is Hong Kong. The Group
has put in place employment policies and guidelines in compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations of the local governments, including:

o the formulation of wage allocation system according to laws, and
such wages shall not be lower than the minimum wages, if any, for
the respective year as promulgated by the government;

° the provision of social security and fringe benefits in accordance
with the relevant government requirements, such as providing
insurance for employees; and

° the provision of labour protection, labour conditions and protection

against occupational hazards in accordance with the relevant
government requirements on labour protection.
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In addition, the Company’s policies and guidelines on recruitment and
promotion are formulated based on the principles that:

we are an equal opportunity employer;

we are against any act of discrimination on the basis of gender,
age, race, etc.; and

we make decisions relating to engagement and promotion based
on staff/candidate performance.

Remuneration, working hours, leaves and other fringe benefits

Remuneration and benefit packages are determined with reference
to the position, skills, capability and performance of staff;

Remuneration is adjusted based on local regulations on minimum
wages;

Working hours, leaves and other fringe benefits are in line
with industry practice and/or (if applicable) adjusted based on

experience, qualifications and seniority of staff; and

An equitable reward system is in place.

During the year under review, there was no material breach of applicable
laws and/or regulations.

Staff breakdown

A breakdown of the number of the Company’s staff as at 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014 is as follows:
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Health and Safety

It is the Company’s primary concern to provide its employees with safe
and convenient working environments.

The Company has developed a set of work safety codes covering areas
of environmental hygiene and cleanliness, machine operation, smoking
ban and fire prevention, hazardous materials handling, arrangements in
times of typhoons and rainstorms, as well as response to emergencies,
etc. It also provides training on work safety codes and requires strict
compliance therewith by its employees.

Work-related injuries and fatalities

During the year under review, there were no work-related fatalities.

Occupational health and safety measures

The Company provides suitable working environments to ensure
adequate protection of the health and safety of its staff.

Development and Training
Policies on employee development and training

The Company places a great deal of importance on the development
of the overall ability and professional skills of its staff. It is committed
to providing relevant training opportunities to its staff from time to time
according to their work requirements, so as to boost the competence
and efficiency of staff and hence the Company’s professionalism and
performance.

Environmental Protection

Emission level

Environmental protection has always been a focus of the Company. In
addition to the strict compliance with national regulations, policies and
requirements, the Company also checks and supervises the plants of its
subsidiaries and associates regularly to ensure that the environmental
standards of the plants meet local laws and regulations and that consents
and approvals have been obtained from relevant authorities.

Utilisation of resources

As one of its green initiatives, the Company seeks to minimise resource
consumption. Average consumption of resources is reduced with
advancements in production technology and the implementation of other
effective measures and guidelines.
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Operational Practice

The Company and its subsidiaries and associates have developed an
effective monitoring mechanism to ensure the smooth implementation
of, and compliance with, its strategies and policies regarding operation.
Various measures such as holding management meetings, conducting
site visits, inspecting documents, etc., are adopted to ensure that the
following principles are observed.

Supply chain management

Being an investment management company, the Company engages in
investments in listed or unlisted equity securities. It does not have any
major supplier of products, raw materials or services, nor does it directly
participate in any negotiation between any investee and its supplier.
However, for the purpose of ensuring a certain degree of management of
supply chain risks, the Company maintains close communication with its
investees to allow a better understanding of the operation and production
of those subsidiaries and associates.

Accordingly, the management believes that the investees have adopted
one or more monitoring measures listed below as a part of their supplier
management:

° Raw materials are initially procured in small batches and tests are
conducted for the raw materials of each product to ensure that the
materials meet the local regulations and requirements regarding
chemical contents;

° Raw materials are purchased in bulk only after being confirmed to
be of no quality issues arising during production;

° As a part of the supplier selection process, samples of raw
materials are requested for testing and only those suppliers whose
raw materials are certified as suitable for use in production will be
qualified;

° Quotations are compared to ensure that they are in line with market
rates;

° The procurement process is strictly monitored to ensure against
any breach of laws;

° Contracts will be entered into with approved suppliers to ensure
that the purchase price and quality of the materials are consistent
with those stated in the contracts.
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Product liabilities

The management believes that all its investees are responsible
product and service suppliers who fulfill all of their service and product
commitments and response to their clients’ complaints in a diligent
manner.

Anti-corruption

Being a responsible corporation, the Company strives to eliminate
bribery and corruption across its management and staff. To do so, the
Company actively introduces relevant and current anti-corruption laws
and punishments to its employees. All employees are fully briefed on
the relevant anti-corruption laws and guidelines upon entering into their
employment contracts so as to ensure that they comply strictly with them
and carry out their duties in good faith. The Company closely monitors
the conduct of its staff to prevent wrong-doings amongst the Board, its
senior management and its staff, such as prohibiting transfer of benefits
while considering any company or project investment.

During the year under review, the Company had not been charged for any
corruption within the Board, its senior management and its staff, as well
as its investees and their employees, during their employment.

Corporate Governance Responsibilities

To provide reasonable protection for the interests of minority
shareholders, the Company strictly complies with the Listing Rules.
In addition to maintaining timely disclosures of relevant corporate
information as well as transparency and accountability in its operation,
the Company also conducts internal reviews from time to time in order
to improve its corporate governance. For information on the Company’s
corporate governance, please refer to the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report”.

The Board advocates a high level of independence so as to make
independent judgements. Therefore, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive directors. The directors believe that all three
of the independent non-executive directors have diversified backgrounds
and experience as well as sufficient calibre and independence to make
independent judgements, provide impartial and professional advice,
evaluate the decisions of the Board, and safeguard the interests of the
minority shareholders.
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Community Involvement

The Company always endeavours to serve the community and therefore
highly respects its corporate social responsibilities. In July 2015, the
Company donated HK$200,000 to Hong Kong International School
for general teaching purposes and the improvement of school facilities,
thereby benefiting its students. The Company has high regard for the
value of education and is therefore delighted to see that a better campus
and excellent teaching is offered to the students. We wish our humble
effort today will reap a bumper harvest of great men for the future society.

For the sake of social betterment, the Company will also identify
charitable, non-profit or educational institutions and foundations that
share its beliefs, and encourage its staff to volunteer for them.

Subsidiaries and Other Investees

The Company has formulated stringent basic internal corporate
governance principles and requirements for its projects/subsidiaries.
It ensures the observance of these principles and requirements by
these projects/subsidiaries through various measures such as holding
management meetings, conducting site visits, inspecting documents,
etc. It also offers necessary support and training in the implementation of
these policies to its subsidiaries and investees from time to time.

For each line of business operation, the Company has adopted different
measures to ensure its respective compliance with the above principles
and guidelines. In respect of the agriculture and forestry development
business, it has adopted a set of principles and guidelines for ecosystem
protection and ensures that the workers are adequately protected and
remunerated, such as having insurance for work injuries and accidents.
In terms of the biological pharmaceutical and regenerative medicine
system and product business, measures have been taken to ensure
safety in its production and research and development processes. For
instance, the research and development and other staff are protected
from fatalities as well as inhaling or being exposed to chemical/hazardous
elements, the products are certified as meeting national safety standards,
and the research and development procedures comply with ethical
standards and guidelines. For the development and building of yachts,
environmental matters of the building process are taken seriously and
green measures such as the reduction of waste and emissions as well as
the recycling of materials has already been implemented.
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Directors Report

EEWmE

The directors have the pleasure in presenting this annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated on 28 June 2002 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The principal activity of the Company is investment in listed and
unlisted companies.

Shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange since 27 September 2002.

Business or geographical analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities for
the year is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group together with a description of
uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business are provided in “Chairman’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 4 to 7of
this annual report. The business review shall form part of this Directors’
Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and the
results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 54 to 56.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
year (2014: Nil).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Review Period
amounted to HK$200,000 (2014: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 57 and 58 and Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands were approximately HK$51,270,000 (2014: approximately
HK$249,407,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association and there is no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Danny F. (Chairman)

Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick

Mr. Fong Chi Wah

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yang XiaoFeng (Resigned on 6 July 2015)

Mr. Gao Chengming (Appointed on 4 March 2015)
Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny (Appointed on 17 March 2015)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen
Mr. Liu Jin
Mr. Law Tze Lun

In accordance with Article 88 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Fong Chi Wah, Mr. Liu Jin and Mr. Law Tze Lun shall retire as directors
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as directors
at the Company’s annual general mesting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Currently, all executive directors have entered into service contracts with
the Company for a term of two years. Each of these executive directors
is entitled to his respective basic salary. In addition, in respect of each
financial year of the Company, each of the executive directors is also
entitled to a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount
of the bonuses payable to all executive directors may not exceed 15%
of the audited net profit of the Company (after taxation but before
extraordinary and exceptional items and payment of such bonuses)
in respect of that financial year of the Company. An executive director
is required to abstain from voting and is not counted in the quorum in
respect of any resolution of the directors regarding the amount of the
monthly salary and the discretionary bonus payable to him.

In respect of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors, each of them has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company respectively for a term up to the forthcoming annual general
meeting and their appointments will be terminated by the giving of not
less than 14 days’ notice in writing by either party. All directors of the
Company, including independent non-executive directors, are subject
to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

Save as disclosed above, no other director has entered into service
agreement with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

The directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts are
set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. Apart from
the foregoing, there was no transactions, arrangements or contract
of significance in relation to the Company’s business, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director
had a material interest in, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBT SECURITIES

Other than those disclosed under the section headed “Interests in Share
Options” below, at no time during the year was the Company a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors or chief executive of the
Company (including their spouses or children under 18 years of age) to
have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any or its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, directors and other officers
for the time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices provided that such indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any
of said persons.

The Company has arranged a Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
Policy to provide appropriate coverage for any potential claims against
directors and officers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors is interested in any business apart from the Group’s
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as
below:

EREETRAERRARER
7 &5 Z fE

% il
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QT%

Approximate
percentage of

Number of Number of the Company’s

ordinary underlying issued share

Name of Director Capacity shares held shares held capital

FiEEMEE AR ARE BT

BEEng 51 FEBREE BB EE BRAFAE DL

Mr. Wong Danny F. Interest of controlled corporation/ 296,338,637 463,143% 16.47%

Beneﬂcial owner
sl THIEE 2R EEBEAA

Mr. Wu Tse Wal, Frederick Beneficial owner - 463,1427 0.03%
RYEEE ERBEBA

Mr. Fong Chi Wah Beneficial owner - 463,1422 0.03%
AEERE ERBEBA

Ms. Yang XiaoFeng Beneficial owner - 463,143% 0.03%
BhE ERBEBA

Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny Beneficial owner 10,280,000 - 0.57%
ekl ERBEBA

Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen Beneficial owner - 463,1424 0.03%
EHFRE EmEAA

Mr. Liu Jin Beneficial owner - 463,1427 0.03%
S E ERBEBA

All of the above interests in the Company held by the directors were long

positions.
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Notes:

1) These represent beneficial interests in shares owned by CCM Asia
Investment Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability and the entire issued share capital of which
is indirectly held by Mr. Wong Danny F., the Chairman and an executive
director of the Company. These shares have been charged in favour of
a secured lender.

) These represent the underlying shares in respect of the share options
granted to the directors pursuant to the share option scheme of the
Company adopted on 27 August 2007. The details are set out in the
section headed “Interests in Share Options” below.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive or their
associates had any interests and short positions in any shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTIONS

The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 27
August 2007 to enable the Company to grant share options to eligible
participants, including the directors and employees of the Company, as
incentive or rewards for their contribution to the Company. On 28 March
2014, an extraordinary general meeting of the Company was convened
and the shareholders of the Company approved the refreshment of the
general scheme limit under the Share Option Scheme at the extraordinary
general meeting which allows the Company to grant share options
entitling holders thereof to subscribe for a maximum of 132,669,662
shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of the extraordinary general meeting.
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Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme,
the purpose of the Share Option Scheme, in principle, is to enable the
Company to motivate participants for their significant contributions to the

growth of the Company and to retain and maintain on-going business

relationship with such participants whose contributions are or will be

beneficial to the long-term growth of the Company. It is important for
the Company to provide them, where appropriate, with an additional
incentive by offering them an opportunity to obtain an ownership interest
in the Company and to reward them for contributing to the Company’s

long-term success and prosperity. The principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme are as follows:

U

(i)

(i)

(i)

42

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any options to be granted under any other scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares in issue
as at the adoption date unless refreshed by the shareholders.
However, the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other scheme should
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to each eligible participant in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being.

The subscription price shall be a price determined by the Board,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on
the date of grant, which must be a business day; (i) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the share.

An option may be accepted by an eligible participant within 28
days from the date of offer of the option. Upon acceptance of the
option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant of the option.

The Share Option Scheme will remain valid for a period of ten years
commencing on 27 August 2007.
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Details of movement of the share options during the year under the Share BREAE THERERNFAZEHFBUOT:
Option Scheme were as follows:
Number of share options
BREHA
Granted Exercised Lapsed Exercise
Outstanding during during during Reclassified Outstanding price
at1Jan the Review the Review the Review during at 31 Dec at1Jan Exercisable
2015 Period Period Period year 2015 2015  Date of grant period
i i i
—E-1f —E-1f —2-1f%
-A-8  REEHE REEHE REBEHE RER +ZA=+-8 -A-B2
WATE Rit it 3 ENSE AT kB R4UBH kid]
(HKS) Note 1)
(%7) (1)
Note 2)
(Hitz)
Directors
Ex
Mr. Wong Danny F. 73,382 - - - - 73,382 565 28 Nov2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
TRELE e e A P ACE
+-A=tN\B ZE—+tENAZtKB
389,760 - - - - 389,760 056 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—F—-F “Z-—FMATN\BE
mA+/NA ZEENAZTRA
Mr. Wu Tse Wai Frederick 73,382 - - - - 73,382 565 28 Nov2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
RYEkH e “EELET-AZTHE
+-A=tN\B ZE—+tENAZtKR
389,760 - - - - 389,760 056 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—F—-F “Z-—FMATN\BE
mA+/NA ZEENAZTRA
Mr. Fong Chi Wah 73,382 - - - - 73,382 565 28 Nov2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
hEERE b 3 “ERLET-AZHNAE
+-A=tN\B ZE—+tENAZtKB
389,760 - - - - 389,760 056 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—F—-F “Z-——FMATN\BE
mA+NA ZEENAZTRA
Ms. Yang XiaoFeng 73,383 - - - (73,383) - 565 28 Nov2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
HRELt b 3 “ERLET-AZHN\AE
+-A=tN\B ZE—+tENAZtKB
389,760 - - - (389,760) - 056 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—F—-F “Z-——FMATN\BE
mA+/NA ZEENAZTRA
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen 73,383 - - - - 73,383 565 28 Nov2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BHHLE ZERE e A P AES
+-A=tN\B ZE—+tENAZtKB
389,760 - - - - 389,760 056 18 Apr2011 18 Apr2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—F—-F “Z-—FMATN\BE
mA+/NA ZEENAZTRA
Mr. Liu Jin 73,382 - - - - 73,382 565 28 Nov2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
Bl sk e e A P AES
+-A=tN\B ZE—+tENAZtKR
389,760 - - - - 389,760 056 18 Apr2011 18 Apr2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—F—-F “Z-—F¥MATN\RE
mA+/NA ZEENAZTRA
2,778,854 - - - (463,143) 2,315,711

=
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Number of share options
BREYE
Granted Exercised Lapsed Exercise
Outstanding during during during Reclassified Outstanding price
at1Jan the Review the Review the Review during at 31 Dec at1Jan Exercisable
2015 Period Period Period year 2015 2015  Date of grant period
—2-1f —Z-1f —2-1%
-A-H REESE REESE REESE RER +=ZB=+-H -f-B2
HRATE it fix:3 %% BHAE HARTE Tk REEH &S
(HKS) Note 1)
(1) (Hett)
(Note 2)
(Hitz)
Employees 11,178,720 - (11,178,720 - - - 056 18 Apr2011 18 Apr2011 to 26 Aug 2017
(] “E——-F “Z-—FMATN\BZE
mA+NA ZE2-+E/\AZ15<A
132,640,000 - (182,640,000) - - - 040  11Juy2014 11Jul 2014 to 26 Aug 2017
—T-mEF —2-MELAT-RE
tA+-H “2-tFNAZTRA
Resigned directors 146,765 - - - 73,383 220,148 565 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BEfES —3%LF ZEREET-AZT\BE
+-A=+NB ZE—tFNAZTAR
779,520 - - - 389,760 1,169,280 056 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—T——f ZZ——4¥MATNEE
mA+NR “E-tFNAZTRA
Other eligible participants 24,914,400 - (14,320,320) - - 10,594,080 056 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
EaE2aE 2——f “2——%MATNARE
mA+NA ZE—+E/\A=15<A
Total 172,438,259 - (158,139,040) - - 14,299,219
@zt
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.45 - - - - HKS0.77
MEFARE 04527 0.7TET
Notes: Biat -
1. In accordance with the terms of the share-based arrangement, (i) a IR ARRAD A BT 7 T8 2 1650 - () % 30% B AR e

maximum of 30% options are exercisable from the date of grant; (i) a
maximum of another 30% options, plus any options being unexercised
in (i), in aggregate not exceeding 60% of total options granted,
are exercisable from 28 November 2008; and (iii) the remaining
40% options, plus any options being unexercised in (i) and (i), are
exercisable from 28 November 2009 to 26 August 2017.

2. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the exercise price
and the number of new shares to be allotted and issued upon full
exercise if the subscription rights attaching to the outstanding share
options were adjusted to reflect the rights issue which came into effect

on 20 February 2014.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Company’s directors and chief
executive, or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any rights
to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such

rights during the Review Period.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at

31 December 2015, so far as is known to the directors, the

following shareholders (other than the directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept

under

section 336 of the SFO:

Directors’ Report
BEEHE

FTERRERHEMATRES 2ER

R-ZZE-—RAF+-A=+—H BERAHN RER
EHGEPIEIBEREFE ZELMATE  ATRE
(BARBEERRSTHRAEIN RAER BN
HEROPEEREIAR

Percentage of
the Company’s

Number of issued
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares share capital
EAERATE BT
BREE, MR 54 LERYE REBD K
CCM Asia Investment Corporation (Note 1) Beneficial owner 296,338,637 16.44%
CCM Asia Investment Corporation (#715%1) BEm#EAA
CCM Financial Corporation (Note 1) Corporate owner 296,338,637 16.44%
CCM Financial Corporation (#/7£1) NEEB A
Sino Portfolio International Limited (Note 2) Security owner 296,338,637 16.44%
Sino Portfolio International Limited (##7%2) ERERERA
Ms. Angela Chen (Note 3) Interest through 296,338,637 16.44%
controlled corporation
Angela Chenz + (#7#£3) BB EREE 2 =
All of the above interests in the Company held by shareholders were long TR ERARB B HBEREI BT E -

positions.

Notes:

1.

Other

Mr. Wong Danny F., the Chairman and an executive director of the
Company, is the sole shareholder of CCM Financial Corporation which
in turn is the sole shareholder of CCM Asia Investment Corporation.
CCM Financial Corporation and Mr. Wong Danny F. are therefore
deemed to be interested in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company held by CCM Asia Investment Corporation under the SFO.

Sino Portfolio International Limited, a company incorporated in the
Republic of Seychelles (“Sino Portfolio”), has a security interest in
296,338,637 shares of the Company.

Sino Portfolio is wholly-owned by Ms. Angela Chen. Ms. Angela Chen

is therefore deemed to be interested in 296,338,637 shares of the
Company which Sino Portfolio has a security interest in under the SFO.

than disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any

other interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2015.

1.

B SEE (KRR ZERFERITES)JHICCM
Financial Corporation®t — % 5 - 5% A 7] JyCCM Asia
Investment CorporationtE — % 5« 1R ¥ 7% & 1§51 -
CCM Financial Corporation } F B I& 4t A A 1t 4 48
A TACCM Asia Investment Corporation$® A 2 AN A
AR R AR B R B fE e o

Sino Portfolio International Limited ([ Sino
Portfolio ] - —FMEE R LMBI M 2 A7)
AN A R]296,338,637 & AR 10 R HE B & RS o

Sino Portfoliofi Angela Chenz + 2 & # & - iR 1%
B F 1551 - Angela ChenZz 4= B It # 17, A& 72 Sino
Portfoliof 7 & (R 1 % 2 78 A 71296,338,637 A% ik 15
PR R

B EXPREBEEN R T—hF+-A=+—8"
ARBMESAEFNEMEERARR D EITRA
5% £ 2 RAR I RABBB D 2 E AR

=
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year under review.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group recognises the importance of environmental protection
and has adopted stringent measures for environmental protection in
order to ensure our compliance of prevailing environmental protection
laws and regulations. For details, please refer to the section headed
“Environmental Social and Governance Report” contained in this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group pays attention to legal and regulatory requirements in
designing its policies and practices. Legal and compliance advisers
will be engaged when necessary to ensure the Group is operated in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

Employees are regarded as valuable assets of the Group and
comprehensive benefit package, career development opportunities
and appropriate internal training are provided to employees. Effective
communications amongst employees are promoted in order to achieve
corporate efficiency.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company’s entire turnover is derived from the Company’s
investment in listed or unlisted equity securities and thus the disclosure
of information regarding to customers and suppliers would not be
meaningful.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Subscription Agreement

On 14 October 2010, the Company and Premium Castle Limited
(“Premium Castle”), a company incorporated under the laws of British
Virgin Islands, entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant to which
Premium Castle agreed to issue and the Company agreed to subscribe
the 2% convertible note in the principal amount of HK$27,000,000
due on 13 October 2013 (the “2010 Convertible Note”). In 2011,
Premium Castle repaid HK$10,000,000 of the outstanding principal
amount of the 2010 Convertible Note to the Company. Subsequently,
the 2010 Convertible Note was cancelled and Premium Castle issued
to the Company another convertible note in replacement of the 2010
Convertible Note (the “2011 Convertible Note”). The Company has not
exercised the conversion rights under the 2011 Convertible Note and the
principal amount of HK$17,000,000 was due on 13 October 2013.
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Upon expiry of the 2011 Convertible Note and after negotiation between
Premium Castle and the Company, the Company and Premium Castle
entered into a new subscription agreement (the “New Subscription
Agreement”) on 24 December 2013 (after trading hours), pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to subscribe for and
Premium Castle has conditionally agreed to issue a convertible note in
the principal amount of HK$18,600,000, being the outstanding principal
amount of HK$17,000,000 under the 2011 Convertible Note and the
outstanding interest in the sum of approximately HK$1,600,000 accrued
under the 2010 Convertible Note and the 2011 Convertible Note
(collectively “Debt”), with maturity period of five years and coupon rate of
2% (the “Subscription”). The New Subscription Agreement constitutes
a discloseable transaction for the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules as the applicable percentage ratios as defined under Rule
14.06 of the Listing Rules are more than 5% but less than 25%. The
New Subscription Agreement also constitutes a connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as the major shareholder of
Premium Castle is Mr. Wong Danny F., the Chairman and an executive
director of the Company, Premium Castle is therefore a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the New Subscription Agreement is
subject to the reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules. Mr. Wong Danny F., who
is the Chairman and an executive director of the Company and a major
shareholder of Premium Castle, is regarded as having a material interest
in the New Subscription Agreement and therefore he abstained from
voting at the meeting of the Board at which the resolution approving the
New Subscription Agreement was passed and Mr. Wong Danny F. and
his associates were required to abstain from voting on the resolution
approving the New Subscription Agreement passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 25 February 2014. Details of
the Subscription were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 7
February 2014. The New Subscription Agreement has been approved at
the extraordinary general meeting and was completed on the same day.

Upon completion of the Subscriptions on 25 February 2014, the
obligation of Premium Castle to pay the Debt has been released and the
Debt, which was previously recorded as current assets of the Company,
was reclassified as financial asset in the Company’s consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Placing Agreement

The Company entered into a placing agreement with Beijing Securities
Limited (the “Placing Agent”) on 4 December 2015, pursuant to which
the Company had agreed to place 52,085,920 new ordinary shares on
a fully underwritten basis to not less than six independent investors at
the placing price of HK$0.409 per placing share. The placing shares
were fully taken up and no placing share has been allotted to the Placing
Agent. Mr. Wong Danny F.,, the Chairman and an executive director of the
Company, holds 75.28% of the shareholdings of the holding company
of the Placing Agent. Mr. Wong Danny F. is also a director of the Placing
Agent and the holding company of the Placing Agent. Hence, the Placing
Agent is an associate of Mr. Wong Danny F. and is therefore a connected
person of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. The
acting as the Placing Agent is a connected transaction under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The Board is of the view that that the placing commission of 4% on
the gross proceeds of the placing was determined within arm’s length
negotiation between the parties with regard to the prevailing market
practice and the placing commission is on normal commercial terms, fair
and reasonable. As the relevant percentage ratios (other than the profits
ratio) in respect of the placing commission and the brokerage fees under
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules is less than 5% and the total consideration
is less than HK$3,000,000, the transaction constitutes a connected
transaction which is fully exempt from independent shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements under Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Investment Advising Service Agreement

On 16 May 2011, the Company and Beijing Capital Partners Limited
(“Beijing Capital”) had mutually agreed to terminate the investment
management agreement dated 16 November 2010 entered into between
the parties and there was no penalty and/or compensation to any party
in relation to the early termination of the agreement. At the meantime,
the Company and Beijing Capital entered into an Investment Advising
Service Agreement (the “IAS Agreement”) whereby Beijing Capital was
appointed to act as investment adviser of the Company and agreed to
provide investment advising services and present suitable investment
opportunities to the Company commencing from 16 May 2011. Pursuant
to Rule 21.13 of the Listing Rules, an investment adviser shall be
regarded as a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the entering
into of the IAS Agreement with Beijing Capital constitutes a continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. According to the terms and condition of the IAS Agreement, the
Company shall pay to Beijing Capital a monthly investment adviser fee of
HK$33,333. Therefore, it is exempted from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Investment Management Agreement

The investment management agreement dated 9 May 2014 entered into
between the Company and Enerchine Investment Management Limited
(“Enerchine Investment”) expired on 15 May 2015. Accordingly, the
Company entered into a new investment management agreement (the
“New Investment Management Agreement”) with Enerchine Investment
on 11 May 2015 to renew the appointment of Enerchine Investment
as the investment manager of the Company on the same terms with
a fixed management fee of HK$100,000 per month. Under the New
Investment Management Agreement, the investment manager agreed to
provide investment management services to the Company for a period
of one year from 16 May 2015. Pursuant to Rule 14A.08 of the Listing
Rules, an investment manager is deemed to be a connected person
of the Company. By entering into of the New Investment Management
Agreement with Enerchine Investment, it constitutes continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and is exempted from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.
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Custodian Agreement

Commencing from 11 March 2005, the Company appointed the Bank
of Communications Trustee Limited as its custodian for the provision
of custody services. The Bank of Communications Trustee Limited has
agreed to provide the Company with securities services including the
safe custody and physical settlement of the securities in the investment
portfolio of the Company, and the collection of dividends and other
entitlements in respect of such securities. The custodian agreement
between the parties (the “Custodian Agreement”) will continue be in force
until being terminated by either the Company or the custodian by the
giving to the other party of not less than 90 days’ notice in writing at any
time.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.08 of the Listing Rules, a custodian shall be
regarded as a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the
provision of services by the Bank of Communications Trustee Limited
under the Custodian Agreement constitutes continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Board, including the independent non-executive directors, is of
the view that the above continuing connected transactions have been
entered into (1) on normal commercial terms; (2) on an arm’s length basis;
and (3) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company, and
that the terms of the above continuing connected transactions were fair
and reasonable to the shareholders and the Company as a whole.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors at the date of this annual report,
there is a sufficient prescribed public float of the issued shares of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises of three
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Liu Jin, Mr. Char Shik Ngor,
Stephen and Mr. Law Tze Lun. Mr. Law Tze Lun serves as the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee together with the management, have reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Company and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including a review of the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year.
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 27 January 2016, the Company completed the placing of
200,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each through a placing
agent to not less than six independent investors at a price of HK$0.32
per placing share. The net proceeds of the placing is in the amount of
approximately HK$61 million, which represents a net price of HK$0.305
per placing share. HK$60 million out of the net proceeds was used
for repayment of the existing loans of the Group, while the balance of
approximately HK$1 million was used for general working capital. Details
of the placing were disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 15 January 2016 and 27 January 2016.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2015 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
who will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Danny F.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B ZHBEN RS

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

NATIONAL INVESTMENTS FUND LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of National
Investments Fund Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 175,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and
of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Sze Wai, Basilia
Practising Certificate Number: PO5806

Hong Kong, 31 March 2016

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Z,—\-,/\ |:|\/

wR H (it 2 W

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE_—Z

IR

—hAFt-HA=t—BLFE

2015 2014
—E—HF —T-F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FH&xT FHET
Revenue Wz 7 (27,193) 56,480
Other income E A 8 - 265
Change in fair value of conversion options ~ AJ IR EERS 2
embedded in convertible notes Mg AR EEE (1,414) (3,771)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZEBE 33 (18,415) (2,050)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHREESMEEY
financial assets 518 (127,138) -
Impairment loss of available-for-sale AHPECREEY
financial assets BIEEBE = (10,938)
Impairment loss of other tangible assets HEMBREE CREBEBE (3,054) -
Other operating expenses HihEEM S (120,193) (140,323)
Finance costs BLE AR 9 (6,486) (6,547)
Share of result of associates il NI E 18 (8,743) (6,062)
Loss before taxation BRBATE R (312,636) (112,941)
Taxation g 10 - -
Loss for the year FREE 11 (312,636) (112,941)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HibzmE (F18) =
Items that may be reclassified RERESEN 782
subsequently to profit or loss: BmEkZHEE !
— Net gain on revaluation of available-for-sale — & i A #f £ & & &8
financial assets BEZWZFE 359 4,847
— Reclassification upon disposal of —HERHEE
available-for-sale financial assets CHMEERENSE 2,756 -
— Reclassification upon disposal of —HEWB QAR
a subsidiary EFOHE (648) -
Other comprehensive income FREMZEmEKE
for the year, net of income tax EHIBRFTEH 2,467 4,847
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2HEEEESE (310,169) (108,094)
Loss for the year attributable to: THREREMFANER:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEFSN (312,636) (112,941)
Total comprehensive loss for the year T3 & EBEEEFER
attributable to: ZHEBEE:
Owners of the Company VININEIE7F DN (310,169) (108,094)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted HAREE 15 HK$(0.18)7% 7t HK$(0.08)7 7T
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated BEMt 2 s Rt SR a Mg K 2 — & H

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“ra IR

As at 31 December 2015 R_ZF—AF+_-_A=+—8H

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it FET FHET
Assets: EE:
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB B RS 16 24,160 6,616
Other tangible assets HthwBREE 17 18,676 21,730
Interests in associates REEERNR 2w 18 15,195 23,938
Available-for-sale financial assets Attt ESmERE 19 59,344 194,864
Conversion options embedded in AMBRERNE 2 RARE
convertible notes 20 1,039 2,453
118,414 249,601
Current assets REEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE 19 17,004 13,444
Financial assets at fair value REGREAEE
through profit or loss TR SREE 21 2,663 120,112
Prepayments, deposits and other FERRE e R
receivables H b e UL FR T8 22 50,352 69,372
Promissory note receivable R H IR 23 3,000 -
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTH 24 8,419 16,489
81,438 219,417
Total assets EE#AE 199,852 469,018
Equity: R
Capital and reserves attributable to EATEBA
owners of the Company EERARF#E
Share capital & 29 18,023 15,920
Reserves ] 55,587 280,072
Total equity s 73,610 295,992

B
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A VBRI E
As at 31 December 2015 R-Z—RF+_-_A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it FET FHET
Liabilities: af&:
Current liabilities REBAE
Accrued charges and other payables FEAS B 32 I HoAth FE S 5B 17,577 8,912
Short-term loans MHIE R 26 - 55,747
17,577 64,659
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Promissory notes A E R 27 108,665 108,367
Total liabilities =Rk 126,242 173,026
Total equity and liabilities ExRkAEHEE 199,852 469,018
Net current assets REEEFE 63,861 154,758
Total assets less current liabilities EERERABERS 182,275 404,359

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2016 and signed on its REFGN T NE=A=1+—B#EERHUT

behalf by: ATREEE:
Wong Danny F. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick
pasyi-1 4 RFE
Director Director
EE EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated BEMT 2 B Bt F4R 6 B Sk < — 2817 °
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A
/ 3 1‘ / SNOEI
I

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &% —

BE)R

—vakeage F = -+ Bl

Attributable to the owners of the Company

KAREEARK
Available-
for-sale
Share financial
option Warrants  assets equity Exchange
Share Share reserve reserve reserve reserve  Accumulated Total
capital premium (Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (iv)) losses equity
THEE
ARER SREE
BRERE i ERfRfE ERfRE
TN RipEE (W) (Htfi) (Bt fiiy) (Hitliv) 2EEE ERAfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn T T TEn T THr TEn TR
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-NE-R—H 3317 327,093 4,558 89 (7,308 0648 (208,054) 120,343
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (112,941) (112,941)
Other comprehensive income FREMZANR
for the year, net of income tax BHBRAER - - - - 4,847 - - 4,847
Total comprehensive income/(oss) FRZAE
for the year Wit/ (BR) 2% - - - - 4,847 - (112,941) (108,094)
Recognition of equity settled BRERESE R
share-based payments RERTR B - - 24,671 - - - - 24,671
Placing & 2,653 169,818 - - - - - 172,471
Placing expenses RERT - (5,371) - - - - - (5,371)
Rights issue i 9,950 89,652 - - - - - 99,502
Rights issue expenses HIRAZ - (7,530) - - - - - (7,530)
Release upon expiry of warrants AR B R R - - - (89) - - 89 -
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-MF
1 January 2015 +-B=+-BR
—Z-1%-A-H 15,920 573,562 29,229 - (2,461) 0648 (320,9086) 295,992
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (312,636) (312,636)
Other comprehensive income FREMPENE
for the year, net of income tax BB AER - - - - 3115 (648) - 2467
Total comprehensive income/(0ss) FR2E
for the year Wi/ (BE) e - - - - 3,115 (648) (312,636) (310,169)
Share options exercised BiTERRE 1582 92,790 (27,036) - - - - 67,336
Placing BE 521 20,782 - - - - - 21,303
Placing expenses RERX - (852) - - - - - (852)
At 31 December 2015 R-B-1%+t-B=1+-A 18,023 686,282 2,193 - 654 - (633,542) 73,610
Bk EESBRAR 201568 57



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

T\III

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ —Z

Notes:

U

(i)

(i)

()

g cEy e

Share option reserve relates to share options granted under the
Company'’s share option scheme and which are reclassified to share
capital and share premium when the share options were exercised, and
to accumulated losses when the share options were lapsed or expired.

Warrants reserve relates to warrants issued in previous years and
which are reclassified to share capital and share premium when the
warrants were exercised, and released to accumulated losses when
the warrants were lapsed or expired.

Available-for-sale financial assets equity reserve relates to the
cumulative gains or losses arising on the change in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets that have been recognised in other
comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to profit or loss
when those financial assets are disposed or impaired.

Exchange reserve relates to the net assets of the Group’s associates’
foreign operations from their functional currency to the associates’
presentation currency.

The accompany notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

e SnER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &% —

—vakeage F = -+ Bl

2015 2014
—E-FF —mE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FH&xT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REXBCRERE
Bank interest income received EUERTTF B A 48 1
Proceeds from sale of financial assets HERBRREANEBYIR
at fair value through profit or loss JEMEEZFIEHRE 110,693 183,620
Dividend income received B U AR B U A - 26
Cash payments to acquire financial assets ~ WEERBZERIZ A EEDIER
at fair value through profit or loss ZeREEZRESHIE (23,020) (180,836)
Cash payments to employees BT REREZHSHE (20,634) (16,351)
Cash payments to investment managers 45 % WEKIE 2H e IR - (1,200)
Cash payments to custodian FHREAZRESHIA - (75)
Cash payments to other suppliers %/a\ FTHAMHER 2 RS HIA (70,240) (140,430)
Net cash outflow from REXEBKZRE
operating activities R FEE (3,153) (155,245)
Cash flows from investing activities REZH2EESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E Y%  BE L&k & (26,819) (2,685)
Purchase of other tangible assets BEEMBREE = (21,730)
Cash payments to acquire available-for-sale WE AT HE LR EE 2 19
financial assets I\ & FAE (1,800) (159,530)
Cash payments to acquire a convertible W AT R IR ik 2 IR & FOIA 19
note (50,125) -
Net proceeds from disposal of a convertible & AJ#iE =4 > 19
note iS58 %58 9,975 -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR ZFSHRIE 33 10,000 20,000
Net cash outflow from investing activites REFZB 2R EFHH BE (58,769) (163,945)
Cash flows from financing activities METH2EERE
Proceeds from placing feE RIS 318 21,303 172,471
Proceeds from rights issue HARFT1S 38 - 99,502
Placing expenses fid & FsZ (852) (5,371)
Rights issue expenses HARF - (7,530)
Proceeds from issuance of shares upon FE AR ﬁ F BTG
exercise of share options FriS 3 67,336 -
Proceeds from a short-term loan EHEZR Ffrg'f IR 30,000 55,000
Repayment for short-term loans EERHER (62,500) -
Interest paid BT F & (1,435) (17)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BEFBRERANEE 53,852 314,055
HERIREES AR AT 201558, 59



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
LeReRER
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZ=—ZT—RAF+-A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—ZE-HF —T—EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Net decrease in cash and RekBRESEEEBERRIFHE
cash equivalents (8,070) (5,135)
Cash and cash equivalents FUzREeRESEEER
at beginning of the year 16,489 21,624
Cash and cash equivalents FR2BSRESEHEER
at end of the year 8,419 16,489
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRESEEER
cash equivalents Rz
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTEE R 8,419 16,489

The accompany notes form an integral part of these consolidated BEMT 2 Mt B F4R 6 M IS mEk < — 2817 °

financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A

AR MBI

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE—T—hAF+t—_A=+T—HIFE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on 28 June 2002 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. Its substantial shareholder is CCM
Financial Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

The principal activity of the Group is investment in listed and
unlisted companies. Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in
Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

The address of the registered office of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company
is located at 20/F., Octa Tower, 8 Lam Chak Street, Kowloon Bay,
Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 27
September 2002.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”), which is a collective term that includes all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency
of the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$’000) except otherwise indicated.

1.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZ=—ZT—RAF+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

62

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are discussed in Note 4.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) (the “new CO”) regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits became effective for the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.
Further, the disclosure requirements set out in the Listing
Rules regarding annual accounts have been amended with
reference to the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs.
Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of information
in the consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015 have been changed to comply
with these new requirements. Comparative information
in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2014
are presented or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements based on the new requirements. Information
previously required to be disclosed under the predecessor
CO or Listing Rules but not under the new CO or amended
Listing Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements.

National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A RS R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-—ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FESTHHEME (&)

(b) Basis of preparation (Continued) (b) mMEEE (E)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when
the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

. rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and
° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate

that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FTESTHHEME (&)

(c) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (c) #ERBEEE (&)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

66

(c)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Business combination (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Business combination (Continued)

68

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date. Measurement period cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Business combination (Continued)

(e)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs”")
(or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

70

(e) Goodwill (Continued)

(f)

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale,
in which case it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Investments in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount, Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate,
or when the investment is classified as held for sale. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

72

(f)

(9)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to
fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity method,
the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of
the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
improvement, furniture and fixtures, office equipment,
computer, motor vehicles and yacht, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item
of property comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets to its location and
working condition for its intended use. Expenses incurred
after item of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repair and maintenance, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the period in which it is
incurred. In situation where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of an item of property, plant and equipment and where the
cost of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of assets and as a
replacement.

National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2015

2. FESTHHEME (&)

(f)

(9)

REEQRz2RE (&)

ERBEARZRARARA EREY
A B R A DR RE K AR
RAAZERE FEEEBEEHESS -
HERSHAREBRDE TR EHN
SHEAREE

EASERINBE AR ZEEEER
BHEEERERE MASESRL
I8 e R Bt % B R s R D TR E A
PHEEERZBENERENIEE
BEX fESZRAXEBRENHE
HEEEIEBERENOHEEERK

SEEREAEEZBENRETR
@R AEB A P BERRER
BERRIRGEL ZIES  EE
RAEREEERE 2B ERNRER

M- BEKRE

M WERRE (BEEEMERE
BMEERE MAERE B "ER
B 1E) AR B B RS AR R AR PRAS IR L 1R
REERER R BEESR (1F)7
Ro-ME BELERBERBZKABRERE
BEBRBZEEENEZEFBH L E
EREAEZAEMERELEZER -
ME - BERRBHRERANEFREL
ZRAX (MEERRE) —RREEZH
Bt aBRa kAt EmKRERMR-
i BEB R B R % F X H et N IEF B iR
BRZEADE BEMKBMELEZZ
B an - MeaxIB B < RAARER] e AT &
AZSEXHERFEEECEINRA X
SIFEERAL



For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE — =

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
lives. The principal annual rates used for the purpose are as
follows:

Leasehold improvement 33%
Furniture and fixtures 10-50%
Office equipment 20%
Computer 50%
Motor vehicles 20%
Yacht 10%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Art works and diamonds

Art works and diamonds are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

Art works and diamonds are derecognised upon disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

74

(i)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

76

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of
AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method and dividends
on AFS equity investments are recognised in profit or loss.
Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
AFS financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

The fair value of AFS monetary financial assets denominated
in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. The foreign exchange gains and
losses that are recognised in profit or loss are determined
based on the amortised cost of the monetary asset. Other
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables (including deposits
and other receivables, promissory note receivable and cash
and bank balances) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

78

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE - =

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continuead)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

80

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continuead)

In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt securities,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including accrued charges and
other payables, short-term loans and promissory notes) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

82

(i)

)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise,
and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE — =

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k) Revenue recognition

()

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables.

Revenue represents dividend income from securities
investments, bank interest income, other interest/dividend
income from financial assets and net gain/loss on financial
assets at FVTPL.

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

i. Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group's rights to receive payment have
been established.

. Interest income from financial assets including
financial assets at FVTPL are recognised on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which are the
rates that exactly discounts and the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
assets to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

i Net gain/loss on financial assets at FVTPL is
recognised on the transaction dates when the relevant
contracts are executed.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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() Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

0

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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(m) Impairment of tangible assets other than

goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow
is probable, they will then be recognised as a provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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(o)

(p)

Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets (Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group has participated in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The MPF Scheme is
generally funded by payments from employees and by the
Group. The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are
expensed as incurred in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme and are not reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the MPF Scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long-service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognised as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

Equity-settled share-based payments
transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details
regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled
share-based payments transactions are set out in Note 36.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share option reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Leasing

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Related parties transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

90 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2015

TEEHHREEE (#)

()

(s)

HE

EEBEREBA

KEHEHSNEMAEREER S
X HEMABERREETRRKRBEEER
OB FERE A 2 2 B MR A RIVE R
RELEHEELZIXREERELN
MR

WAL HERKNREEES A
HMESSHA/EE - BEEMBARN
ERZERIRESRANR ERSHE
EMEETRRREEEERRALER
a8 2 B AR = BUE Bl -

BEALRS

fird B T B R - — 77 B4R AR /5 B R & (&)
BREE:

(@ fHEATER RIZALHEIR
HAREARE:

() FZATEGISEREEGARE
EH

(i) HAKBEERFEDN %

iy BEAEEREFRRZEZE
BTEEKE -
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s) Related parties transactions (Continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiaries is related to
the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employees are
also related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

92

(s)

(t)

Related parties transactions (Continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between
the Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price
is charged.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

° exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary
items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

94

(t)

(u)

v)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or joint arrangements that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA for the first time in the current year.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to
the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange relating to the
disclosure of financial information with reference to the new CO
during the reporting period. The main impact to the financial
statements is on the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the financial statements.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

NidL

AEBIWEIRFIEA THIER/MERRERZ
AT R ERI BBV RS ER:

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs EETISRELER —E-——FFEZFN
2012-2014 Cycle! (1&82%) FRMzBEVIER
&% I 2 U
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BERUHHRELAESE 2RIA?
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and  Hedge Accounting and BEBTEHREER WheitzAREEH
HKAS 39 (Amendments)  amendments to HKFRS 9, oW BAEMBWME BRELAFSR B

HKFRS 7 and HKAS 397 EAETRRBEBGH

85305 (&)

BTSRRI ETHR
kBB S ERIE39

2 1B
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sales or Contribution of Assets AT HREER REEREBENT R
(Amendments) between an investor and its FIORKRBBGS EEMEIHBEER
Associate or Joint Venture? 855285 (&) BREE

BB I IS R %A REBE  ERLLZAHIIN
F10%  BEFBERSE  BR

R F125 K

ARG ERF285R

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities: Applying the
HKAS 28 (Amendments) Consolidation Exception’

(1&ER)
HKFRS 11 (Amendments)  Accounting for Acquisition of BREMBRELER WEBReKeER 2
Interests in Joint Operation’ 2115 (B%) TR
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts? BB B S AR EERERRS
145
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with B E 2R RARFPEHZHA?
Customers? 155
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative’ BAESHENEIR BT A
(52%)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

EEGMERNEIGHRR EBEFEREBH UL
BEAR G ENEIBH RGE
(&20)

BREHENFEIRE RE:EEEEY

(Amendments) EEEENEMNR
(1&ER)
HKAS 27 (Amendments)  Equity Method in Separate BB ERE27H BB HRR 2 ERE
Financial Statements’ (152%)

96

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial staternents beginning
on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual
financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and
therefore is not applicable to the Group.

No mandatory effective date is determined but is available for
early adoption.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

The directors of the Company is in the process of assessing the
potential impact of the new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet
in a position to determine whether the new and revised HKFRSs
will have a significant impact on how its results of operations and
financial position are prepared and presented. The new and revised
HKFRSs may result in changes in the future as to how the results
and financial position are prepared and presented.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group accounting policies, which are
described in Note 2, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations are
that management has made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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4.

98

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies, accounting estimates and
assumptions

Impairment of AFS financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 when determining
whether an investment in AFS financial assets is other than
temporarily impaired. This determination requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an
AFS financial asset is less than its cost, and the expected time
span the Group will hold on to this investment.

Impairment of other receivables and promissory note
receivable

The Group estimates impairment losses for other receivables
and promissory note receivable resulting from the inability of the
debtors to make the required payments. The Group bases the
estimates on the ageing of the other receivables and promissory
note receivable balance, receivables creditworthiness, and
historical write-off experience. If the financial conditions of the
receivables were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher
than estimated.

Estimated impairment of interests in associates

In determining whether there is an impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows to
be generated by the associates. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the interests in associates and the share of the present value
of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the
associates. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies, accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and other
tangible assets

Determining whether property, plant and equipment are impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which property, plant and equipment have been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. The Group tests annually whether the assets have suffered
any impairment. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash
generating unit is determined based on value in use calculations
which require the use of assumptions and estimates.

Determining whether other tangible assets are impaired requires
an estimation of the fair value less cost to disposal to which
other tangible assets have been allocated. The recoverable value
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the assets. Impairment loss has been
made if the recoverable amounts of the other tangible assets were
below their carrying amounts. Details of the recoverable amount
calculations are disclosed in notes 17.

Fair value of conversion options embedded in
convertible notes

Conversion options embedded in convertible notes represented
the conversion option element of the convertible notes subscribed
by the Group and are measured at fair value using the binomial
option pricing model at initial recognition and at the end of each
reporting period. The debt element of the convertible notes is
classified as AFS financial assets.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of the
business. The Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.
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4.

100

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies, accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 2 when determining
the fair value of the share options granted at the grant date.
This determination requires significant estimate. In making this
judgement, the Group incorporates all factors and assumptions
that knowledgeable, willing market participants would consider in
setting the price and the valuation technique should be consistent
with the generally accepted valuation methodologies for pricing
financial instruments.

Fair value of AFS financial assets

The fair value of AFS financial assets that are not traded in active
market is determined by valuation techniques. Fair value of AFS
financial assets is determined by independent valuer with reference
to the market value of underlying net assets. Valuation techniques
that include inputs that are not based on observable market
data and make assumptions that are primarily based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Note 19
provide detailed information about key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful
lives of property, plant and equipment in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives
are estimated at the time the asset is acquired based on historical
experience, the expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as
well as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the market
demands. The Group also performs annual reviews on whether the
assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

(b)

5. ERTAREARAKRERE

Categories of financial instruments (a) €T EEH
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—uF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
Financial assets ERMEE
AFS financial assets AHEESREE 76,348 208,308
Conversion options embedded AMREBRRNE 2R E
in convertible notes 1,039 2,453
Financial assets at FVTPL RIBRRZEAAEE
PR e R EE 2,663 120,112
Loans and receivables ER R ERGIE (B
(including cash and cash equivalents) RekBFeEEER) 60,510 82,813
140,560 413,686
Financial liabilities SRAE
At amortised cost tize S| 126,242 173,026

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
AFS financial assets, conversion options embedded in
convertible notes, financial assets at FVTPL, and loans and
receivables. The main purpose of holding these financial
instruments is to generate short-term appreciation gain
and gain from trading of these financial instruments. The
Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as other
receivables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

(b)
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5.
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

TMTAREARERER ()

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) REAREEEEREE (&)
and policies (Continued)
Market risk 45 B B
The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks REBEBEFERZINEEER -FIRR
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates IR A (B 18 & B) 2 B 75 [ g
and equity prices.
Market risk exposures are measured by sensitivity analysis. FiARz MG RRASERE DI E -

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which these risks are managed
and measured. Details of sensitivity analysis for foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk are set out below.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of financial
instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group carries out its business mainly
in Hong Kong and all of the transactions are denominated
in HK$. The Group’s assets and liabilities are mainly
denominated in HK$, except certain bank balances and
financial assets at FVTPL are denominated in United States
dollars (“US$”). As Hong Kong dollar are pegged to US$,
it is assumed that there would be no material currency risk
exposure between these two currencies. The Group does
not have any formal hedging policies.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
the Group’s variable interest bearing bank balances, fixed
interest bearing financial assets at FVTPL, promissory note
receivable and promissory notes. The exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk is minimal. The Group did not enter into
interest rate swap to hedge against its exposures.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk related to
the Group’s interest bearing AFS financial assets.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. R TITAREXREKRERE (&)

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) EEEKREEEEREE (&)
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) gk (&)
Interest rate risk (Continued) FlEm g (&)
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to fair value interest rate risk at the reporting
date:

If the fair value interest rate had been 50 basis points (2014
50 basis point) higher or lower and all other variable held
constant, the Group's:

° AFS financial assets equity reserve would increase
or decrease by approximately HK$85,000 (2014:
HK$67,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of
AFS financial assets.

The Group has no exposure to interest rate on financial
liabilities except for the promissory notes.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities and commodities
price risk because investments held by the Group are
classified on the consolidated statement of financial position
either as AFS financial assets or as financial assets at FVTPL.
To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity
securities and commodities futures contracts, the Group
diversifies its portfolio.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date:
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. R TAREXREMBEE (&)
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) cRIEREEBEZREEK (&)

and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the equity prices had been 5% higher or lower:

° Loss before taxation for the year ended 31 December
2015 would increase or decrease by approximately
HK$133,000 (2014: approximately HK$6,006,000).
This is mainly due to change in fair value of held for
trading investments.

° AFS financial assets equity reserve would increase
or decrease by approximately HK$3,817,000 (2014:
approximately HK$10,415,000). This is mainly due to
change in fair value of AFS financial assets.

The Group’s sensitivity to price risk have decreased during
the year mainly due to the decrease in investments in
financial assets at FVTPL and AFS financial assets.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk is bank balances, promissory note
receivable and other receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. The Group and the
Company also have credit policies in place and exposures
to credit risks regards other receivables are mentioned on an
ongoing basis.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the
Company does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B BT IARMT

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

5. TRIAREARERERE (H)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) cRIEREEBEZREEK (&)
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk REBE R
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests EFEeEEEERDERRB IERE
with the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate B VERELEECRBDECRREE
liquidity risk management framework for the management B UEBASEZRE PHERE
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and B RRBESBEE -
liquidity management requirements.
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual TRFVNAEERESHEBZHTE
maturity for its financial liabilities which are included in the A (BEIARBEERSE SRR M
maturity analysis provided internally to the key management FTEEEBABRNPREZINBEITA) ©
personnel for the purpose of managing liquidity risk. For MIETEBEMS AR REIBIE
non-derivative liabilities, the tables reflect the undiscounted REBUHEEREFR KT AHAFEZ
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on SRABERURRERE-AHAIEKE
which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include BAERAGHEME -
both interest and principal cash flows.
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within 2to Over5 undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 5years years amount amount
mEF3
BRA= -FR WEZRE BBEF AMRLE ARESE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx TERT T THEx THEx
2015 —E-mf
Non-derivative financial liabilities FITESMAE
Accrued charges and other payables  FEfHB S J H ft JE (S 500E - 17,577 - - 17,577 17,577
Promissory notes S 5.35 - 165,000 - 165,000 108,665
17,577 165,000 = 182,577 126,242
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E_—T—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. €I AREARRKREE (&)
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives (b) sREREEEEREEK (&
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESmE ()
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within 210 Over5  undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years years amount amount
MEFH
ERA= —Ex WERLE BBLF ARRAE LFEE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TET FET

2014 —T—MmEF
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTEERERE
Accrued charges and other payables {53 J Lt fE (5708 - 8,912 - - 8,912 8,912
Short-term loans REER 7.00 55,905 - - 55,905 56,747
Promissory notes ALEE 5.35 - 27,500 127,500 155,000 108,367
64,817 27,500 127,500 219,817 173,026
Fair value estimation () AAREEME
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are CRHEERESBREBEZAAEBELIAT
determined as follows: P75 HREE
()  the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities () REEGERRGERELRERR
(including derivative instruments) with standard terms FmEEECeMEERSRAE
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are (BETEIR) 2 AREEB 25
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices 2EMBMHZEABRELEM
and ask prices respectively; and B R
(i) the fair value of other financial assets and financial (i) HtemEEkemAR (BET
liabilities (including derivative instruments) are ETHR)ZAAREBE: BIREAR
determined in accordance with generally accepted EERAIZIRIRS RE D ITER
pricing models based on discounted cash flow AHERZIREMHRH 2 BIRK
analysis using prices or rates from observable current b AR B A BUIR T & E © Bt LA A7
market transactions as input. For an option-based BAEWMITETAMS  AnE
derivative, the fair value is estimated using option B A EEER (=185 5
pricing model (for example, the binomial option pricing REEEBER) M-
model).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE T —RAF+_A=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values except for the promissory notes.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable:

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

5. TRIAREARERERE (H)

(c) DREEME (&)
ARRBFRR BRAEALREIN REA

MBEBENINEZEREERERAE
ZEMERERERAAEERES -

REBEMBRRARERZ A LEE

Mo

TREHRNFERRRALEBEFE
ZERTEDH ERAREBENERSE
RED BIE3MR:

- BIRAREEFENAHEREE
KA ERERTISEHARFHRER

=]
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E_—T—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. 2@ THEREARBERE (&)
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) AAEEME (F&)
Fair value measurements recognised in the REGEMBERRERERZAAEEE
consolidated statement of financial position (#&)
(Continued)
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—E-1% F1R $28 B35 &t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TR TR TH#x
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL RERREALEE
SR eRERE 2,663 - - 2,663
Conversion options embedded MAREBENE 2 AkE
in convertible notes - - 1,039 1,039
AFS financial assets THEESHEE
Unlisted debt securities FEMERES - - 17,004 17,004
Unlisted equity securities FEMRAE S - - 59,344 59,344
2,663 - 77,387 80,050
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—T-NF E1 B F3M G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TRT TRT TRT

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL REZRELAEBE
SR e REE 120,112 - - 120,112
Conversion options embedded AAREBNE 2 ARkE
in convertible notes - - 2,453 2,453
AFS financial assets AHLESHEE
Unlisted debot securities FEMEBES - - 13,444 13,444
Unlisted equity securities EEMRAES - - 194,864 194,864
120,112 - 210,761 330,873
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in both RWREFE  F1REFR 2 FIEE
years. # -
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. 2@ THEREARBERE (&)
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) AREMEME (&)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements PHEEFIRAAEBEFEZHER
of financial assets

Conversion
options
Unlisted Unlisted embedded in
equity debt convertible
2015 securities securities notes Total
LW ¥Em  TERREE
—E-If RAES BEES NEZBRE &t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TERr TER TER
Opening balance FENitk 194,864 13,444 2,453 210,761
Gains or losses recognised in: RTFIE B #ER
WasskEE:
— profit or loss -8Rk (105,616) (23,506) (16,817) (145,939)
- other comprehensive income —-Hir2EME 2,596 519 - 3,115
Purchases BE 49,266 36,522 15,403 101,191
Disposal HE (81,766) (9,975) - (91,741)
Closing balance FRES 59,344 17,004 1,039 77,387
Conversion
options
Unlisted Unlisted  embedded in
equity debt convertible
2014 securities securities notes Total
JEEm EEm  ARERREE
—T-mE RAEH E%ER Ra2RkE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FTHT THT THET
Opening balance FEH 41,892 - - 41,892
Gains or losses recognised in: RTFIE B #ER
WassiEE:
— profit or loss -Bax (10,933) 916 8,771) (13,788)
- other comprehensive income —Hip2mEbiE 4,375 472 - 4,847
Purchases EE 159,530 - - 159,530
Reclassification BHOH - 12,056 6,224 18,280
Closing balance S S 194,864 13,444 2,453 210,761
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ T —HAF+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. R TITAREXREKRERE (&)

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(c) DREEME (&)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of financial assets (Continued)

The gains or losses included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
years mainly related to recognition of interest income,
change in fair value of conversion options embedded in
convertible notes, disposal and impairment loss of AFS
financial assets.

The gains and losses included in other comprehensive
income for the current year related to the reclassification
upon disposal of AFS financial assets and a subsidiary, and
fair value change in unlisted equity securities and unlisted
debt securities held at the end of the reporting period and
are reported as changes of “AFS financial assets equity
reserve”.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE — =

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. &

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

R IR Mt
—HF+-A=+—HLFE

BMTAREXAERERE (F)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) AAREEME (&)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements THEEFIRAAEETEZEHIER
of financial assets (Continued) (#&)

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities rEEHHeREERERABER
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting WEREAABEGTE  FTRIEH ZZ T
period. The following table gives information about how the ErZSeniEReRAEANERE
fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities (FRIRMAZHERG R ASRE) 2
are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and B o
inputs used).
Fair value as at Fair value Valuation techniques
Financial assets RSB AAEE hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
31 December 2015 31 December 2014 fhERLR

EREE ZE-Af+ZBZ1-H Z3-ME+ZR=1-A MEEZR IZBARE EXTUBERAUE

1) Listed equity securities In Hong Kong: HK$2,663,000 I Hong Kong: HK$120,112,000 Level 1 Quoted bid pricesinan ~ N/A
classified as financial assets active market
at FVTPL (Note 21)

) PERREGRELAEE  REE:2663000%% REE 120,112,000 18 ERTLMBEAE  TER
Sz eRAEY
FRRAES (Hior)

2)  Conversion options embedded  Conversion options embedded ~ Conversion options embedded Level 3 Binomial option pricing ~ The expected share price volatiity is 65.36% (2014:
in convertible notes classified in convertible notes issued in convertible notes issued model (Note (v 51.06%] with reference to 3.15-year (2014: 4.15
as financial assets at FVTPL by Premium Castle Limited by Premium Castle Limited year) historical weekly volatilties of comparable
Note 20) (Note (iv)) - HK$1,039,000 (Note (i) - HKS2,453,000 companies, arisk free rate of 0.752% and a isky

rate of 9.88% (2014: a risk-free rate of 1.318% and
arisky rate of 10.11%).

The fair value measurement is positively correlated
to the credit spread. As at 31 December 2015,
the credit spread used in the valuation is 8.73%
(2014:9.31%), and it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an increase/decrease of
10% in the credit spread would increase/decrease
the fair value of the option by approximately
HK$24,000/HKS26,000 (2014: HK$48,000/
HK$51,000).

) SEANBEXEAALEE  HPremium Castle LimitedB T2  FiPremium Caste Limted®172 538 TEABERERE  REREREARS36%(ZF-HE:51.06%)
S eREE TR TEREEAZ ZRRE TAREENE 2 BRE (Frita) DERIELBARZ316F (23— WE 415
REEMNE 2 hkE (W) —1,039,000% 7 (#rithy)) —2,453,000% 7T ) BEERE BRRNZ0.752%RAERT
(fiitzo) %9.88% (- Z M : EMRAI1.318% R AR

BAIE10.11%) B
MMEEHSALASZALENR -R-F-1
iJr A=tT-B HEFAEREER8T%
(ZZ-DE:931%) EE AL REBERT
2 ERREEN/B0REEREREN
(BTS20, 024 0005T /2600057 (=%
—% 48,0007 /51,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E_—T—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. R TAREARRBEE (F)

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

D AEEM (&)

EHEEFIRAAEBETABZHE

Significant unobservable inputs

EXFTRREARE

The price to book ratio of the comparable companies
is considered in the valuation to reflect the condition
that there are premium or discount on fts stock price
and its book value as at valuation date.

Discount for lack of marketability, determined by
reference to the share price of listed entities in similar
industries at 25% as at 31 December 2014. If the
discount rate was 5% higher/lower while all other
variables were held constant, the carrying amount of
unlisted equity securities would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$936,000.

REZETELRAATEE HIRERAER
HEEREREREAMEEIARLER

RB-ME+-A=+-R 2RENAELA
BERBERRZ TERBLE L RAB%
MTEE L/ THo% MAFALMLEGEST
2 A LARAES BRERRES /N
#1936,000% T ©

The price to book ratio of the comparable companies
is considered in the valuation to reflect the condftion
that there are premium or discount on fts stock price
and its book value as at valuation date.

Discount for lack of marketabilty, determined by
reference to the share price of listed entities in similar
industries at 25% as at 31 December 2014. If the
discount rate was 5% higher/lower while all other
variables were held constant, the carrying amount of
unlisted equity securities would decrease/ increase
by approximately HK$836,000.

REZETELRAATEE HRBRAER
HEEREREEEAMEEINZZER

of financial assets (Continued) (#&)
Fair value as f‘ Fair value Valuation techniques
Financial assets RTSIRMZAAEE hierarchy and key inputs
31 December 2015 31 December 2014 fHERLR
EREE ZE-1f+ZBZ1-H Z3-ME+ZR=1-A MEEZR ITEARE
3 Unlisted equity securities N/A 0.89% equity investment Level 3 Market approach
classified as AFS financial in HEC Capital Limited (Note (i)
assets (\ote 19) (Note (j) - HK$56,140,000
3 SERURLESREE,  TEA TAHEC Capital Limited;20.89% 238 misE (i)
FLTREES (Hit19) RARE (W) -
56,140,000 7T
N/A 1.80% equity investment in Level 3 Market approach
Freeman Corporation Limited Note (1))
(Note fj) - HK$50,154,000;
MER REEZRERARZ £3% w5k (i)
180%RAHRE (i)
~50,154,00078 7T :
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—_T—RAF+_A=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSAND CAPITAL 5. €@ IAEREARKERE (&)
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) AAEEME (&)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements CTHEEFIRAAEBETEZEHER
of financial assets (Continued) (#&)

Fair value as f‘ Fair value Valuation techniques
Financial assets RPSIEE2 AAEE hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
31 December 2015 31 December 2014 fHERLR
EREE “Z-EF+=B=1-H “E-mE+ZA=t-H MEEER ITRARE EXTUBEAAUE
8% equity investment in Smart 8% equity investment in Smart Level 3 Comparable sales Prices for each species were taken from on-site
Role Limited (Note (i) Role Limited (Note (i)} approach (Note (i) research and interview, official construction cost
- HK$59,344,000; - HK$59,503,000; journls, local practitioners, and forestry products

industry information in the PRC from various
websites in the public domains. No allowances
for transportation were considered as these costs
are normally paid by the buyer. However, the
referenced prices adopted are after allowance for
the uprooting and loading. If the prices parameters
was 5% higher/lower while all other variables were
held constant, the carrying amount of unlisted
equity securities would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB36,000,000/RMB35,000,000
(2014: RVB30,000,000/RMB40,000,000).

Reasonable recovery rates were applied to allow
for losses before and during harvesting for each
species at the representation of the appointed
personnel of the Group's management. If the
recovery rates were 5% higher/lower while all
other variables were held constant, the carrying
amount of unlisted equity securities would increase/
decrease by approximately RMB 45,000,000/
RMB44,000,000 (2014: RMBA40,000,000/

RMB40,000,000).

J¥Smart Role LimitedZ Smart Role Limited Z8% A £3% TELBBEER LHARELBENRABNRERDE EHER
8%IRARE (Hztfi) RE (W) (Hi) RARE A ERALARTRAAREE 2 FE
~50,344,000 7 ; ~50,503,000/87T: HERTEEN ARNEGER-RAEHZM

FUEEEAEER AN ARAZ2ZEEN
BERSEREEER - DERZRLT/TH
5% AR MEGERTE A5 EmRAE
S BEEEBREM/ % AR 36,000,000
7T/ NEH35,000000 (ZE-1E: AE¥
30,000,007/ AR #40,0000007C) °

fFBEASEEEEZARE GHAECER
ABRRER HERFREHARERRR S,
AR AR REE L7/ THE% A
BROZERETE AFLTRAES L EE
SEBEN/ BN AREL 0000007,/ AR
#:44,000,0007C (ZF—I% : AR 40,000,000

7o,/ ABH40,000,0007T) »
N/A 50% equity investment in Level 3 Market approach Market comparable ranges from EUR5,700,000
Kingswood Shine Limited (Note (i) to EURG,000,000 and the individual factors
(Note fiv) - HK$29,067,000 considered are time and quality of the yacht. The
longer time and poor quality, the lower the fair value.
TER RERERAFZSNRARE  £3 w5k (W) 55 bt SR &8 1 5,700,00081 7 26,000, 0008 T
(W) —29,067,000%7 fZRAARRARRE BEREE KRM

RRZEEE BRAEERE.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of financial assets (Continued)

Fair value as at

Financial assets RPSIEE2 AAEE

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
EREE ZE-1f+ZBZ1-H “E-mET-A=t-H
4 Unlisted debt securities Convertible notes Convertible notes issued by

classified as AFS financial assets  issued by Premium Castle Premium Castle Limited
Note 19) Limited (Note (v)) (Note i) - HK$13,444,000
- HK$15,204,000

4 HEATRHESHEEZEL HPremium Castle Limited #Premium Castle Limited
miEBER (Hit19) BZARRER BIZTARER

() —152040008% (M) —13,444,000

Debenture issued by
the American Club NA
(Note (1)) - HK$1,800,000

HAmerican Club¥ T2 BEE TE7
(A u)) 1,800,000/

Notes:

(i) HEC Capital Limited is an exempted company
incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability on
11 April 2012, which is principally engaged in investment
holding.

(ii) Freeman Corporation Limited is an exempted company
incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability on 28
June 2013, which is principally engaged in investment
holding.
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5. TRTAREXERERE (&)

(c) AAREEMEE (&)
THREEFEIRAAEBHETEZEHER
(#)
Fair value Valuation techniques
hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
TRERBR
MEEZR ITEARE EXTUBEAAUE
Level 3 Amortised cost method ~ Risk-free rate 0.75%, a risky rate of 9.88% and a
Note (i) coupon rate of 2% (2014: Risk-free rate of 1.33%, a

234 Bk
(Witty)

Level 2 Market approach

(Note (i)

Fo mak (Heth))

HiaT

risky rate of 10.11% and a coupon rate of 2%).

The fair value measurement is negatively correlated
to the credit spread. As at 31 December 2015,
the credit spread used in the valuation is 8.73%
(2014:9.31%), and it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an increase/decrease of
10% in the credit spread would decrease/increase
the fair value of the convertible notes as a whole by
approximately HK$350,000/HK$361,000 (2014:
HK$411,000/HK$429,000).

AR BRI E0.75% £ B IR 7 %£0.88% R 5. %2%
(Z2-mE: EARFE133% ERRNE
01%REEE) -

N

2

EEEREREZRAEDY 1

TZR=t-R {4EMER WE‘%%B?S%
:§ & : 31%) AN UERT
 EREER/ 0% EHTARESE
AEER D /R 1141350,00057T,/361,000
(Z2—ME : 411,000% T /429,000%

IS

”\4#

Fill Rl

=

o

Market comparable ranges from HKS1.8 million to
HK$1.9 million and the individual factors considered
are the second hand quotation price of American
Club Corporate (Full) Membership in Hong Kong.

%5 (L SR EE 171,800,000 7 1,900, 00078 T
i BRI R & BEEAmerican CUbA R (5
B)eE/-FHE-
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of financial assets (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

()

Smart Role Limited is an exempted company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands with limited liability
on 7 November 2013, which is principally engaged in
investment holding.

On 24 December 2013, the Company subscribed a new
convertible note issued by Premium Castle Limited with
principal amount of HK$18,600,000. The completion of
the subscription took place on 25 February 2014.

On 23 March 2015, the Company subscribed
a debenture issued by the American Club with
consideration of HK$1,800,000. The completion of
subscription took place on 1 June 2015.

The market approach determines the fair value of the
assets by reference to the transaction prices, or valuation
multiples implicit in the transactions prices, of identical or
similar assets on the market.

Comparable sales approach is the present market value
in terms of price per unit volume of the final product and
the total merchantable volume of each species in the
concession as basis for coming up with the estimated
value. The underlying theory of this approach is existing
market price is dependent parameter since it reflects how
much the buyer is willing to pay and how much the seller
is willing to receive to give up his goods and services.

Binomial option pricing model determines the fair value
of the assets by adopting discrete time, non-closed
form model of varying price over time of the underlying
instruments.

Amortised cost method is the amount at which the
financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, and minus any reduction for impairment on
uncollectibility.

5. TMTAREFARARERE (H)

(c) DREEME (&)

EHEEEIRAAEEAEZHIE
(#)

Hrat - (&)

(i) ~ Smart Role Limited B =% — =4
T—AtREEBEXAES T
ZEREERAR FERERAEE

vy RZZT—=F+ZA=+WHE XA
7] 32 8 [ Premium Castle LimitedFf 2
17784 %8 /318,600,0007 T 2 7 7]
BEE  LMREER T —MNF=
A-+HB®xK-

vy RZE—RF=ZA=-+=H'ARAT
2 B8 B American ClubZ¥ 1T 2 (E#EEE -
1B A&1,800,000/8 7t » a2 EEE R
—ZE-hFANA—HEK-

V)  THE2RME LARKEUEEZ
RREHRRERS 2 hERBBEE
BEZAREE:.

Vi)  AELLBEEERASEARBESRR
EmZBRIME(RSELHEBER
FAE)RMSARHEMRREERE
% SAEBRMGFHEERE WA ZER
EmaRTmERKESHE HER
METRENHZEREETRED
B R b R 7S T BE MR 2 (B A

(viiy = I8 = HA#E E (B 1 AU R B B AR
(FRRE T E(B/&EERE M A PR 2 3k
REREBR)ETEEZAAEE:

(x) BERAEANVTHERRAESH
BEZSERASER  SIMASR
ERF SREINRE R 2 EMER
NERMEORFEZ Rat#iE - BR
E PN ATUR B M1 2 R (E 2 A a4

2
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—ZT—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5.
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will
be able to continue as going concerns while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from 2014.

The capital structure of the Group consists of nearly
no debt except for the promissory notes. It finances its
operation primary through equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising share capital, share premium,
share option reserve, AFS financial assets equity reserve,
exchange reserve and accumulated losses.

Gearing ratio

The Group has adopted a higher finance leverage compared
to the last year. Based on the Group’s policy, the gearing
ratio, as calculated as total debt divided by total equity at the
end of the reporting period was as follows:

TMTAREARERER ()

d) EXRERER

AEBEBHER UBRASEEN
EESERE YRARBEEELEBR
Bu @t SERaBINTERES
Ol NEE o BERKE T —OF
s e g o

BRAEAKZBIN AREZBRARBET
TEEB - AKETEBRBARRES
ARG (BREEA BMNEE BKR
RERE AIHLECREERSRHE B
RREBRZEER) RELERNER -

BEXEELE

AR BRAEAF BB 2B R R
BAEEHM RE2RAKZARE
b AR AR ME R AR B )
mF

2015 2014

—E-HE —T

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FET

Debt (Note (j)) &% (HaE0) 126,242 173,026

Equity (Note (i) Wz (B ata) 73,610 295,992

Gearing ratio BEABEEE 171.5% 58.5%
Notes: Bt

(i) Debt comprises short-term loans and promissory notes.

(ii) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its business by both business lines and
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Board of Directors, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance, the Group
has presented its reportable segments under HKFRS 8 as follows:

Business segment

The Group operates one segment for both years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014. All of the Group’s revenue was derived
from investment income from investments in listed securities,
unlisted securities and commaodities futures contracts. Accordingly,
the Group does not have separately reportable segment.

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong and

the United States. The following table provides an analysis of the
Group's revenue by geographical market:

6. DEEHR

RERZRREBGIBREBEER 257
AEREHTEFS (MXTBLERRE)ED
RERNFEIERRIABNRE B X%
ERABEV B REEESRMEIN A2
BOBWT

E 3B

HE-_ZT—AFE_ZT—NF+=-_A=+—H
IEREFEA AEELE - B H A5 E
ZWEEERERE LTES FLTESFR
EmBEAHNZEERA I NREE W&
BRI 2wDHE -

it EE R

AEBzEBETBUREBREE  TRIEMH
AEBRMWERTIHE D 2 WE DT

Revenue by

geographical market

RitEH 5 E D 2 W&
2015 2014
— —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Hong Kong BB (27,683) 55,656
Singapore T hni - 824
United States ES 490 _
(27,193) 56,480

2
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E_—T—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.
Geographical information (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-current
assets (excluding AFS financial assets and conversion options
embedded in convertible notes) analysed by the geographical area
in which the assets are located:

7EER (F)
& &R ()
RAEMEHBHD ZFRDEAE (TRED

HEETREERATRBRREANS 2 RKRE)
EESEITET

Carrying amount
of non-current assets

FRBEECRASE
2015 2014
—E-1F —ZT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBx FHT

Hong Kong BE

58,031 52,284

No single customer of the Group contributed 10% or more to the
Group’s revenue for both years.

7. REVENUE 7.

The amount of significant category of revenue recognised during
the year is as follow:

AEERMEFEAREE TP ZEEMEA
E B UEE10%3 A F o

iz

RERETERCHERRSSELT

2015 2014
—ZE-HF —ZT—MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fax FHT

Net (loss)/gain on financial assets at FVTPL R E#HF XX AN EBENIEREZ

(Note) e@MEEZ (FB1B)/

Weas B 58 (H15) (29,776) 54,397
Bank interest income RITHFBUA 48 1
Interest income from AFS financial assets AtEESREEZFEWA 2,380 1,232

Interest income from financial assets RIEEXREAAEBBEYERZ
at FVTPL SEEEZFBRA = 824
Interest income from a promissory note LR 2 R BUA 155 -

Dividend income from financial assets REBRREAAEEYEZ
at FVTPL ERMEEZREMA - 26
(27,193) 56,480
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 7. Ug3% (M)
Note: Kiat -
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets at FVTPL represented: REBRREZALBEIRZEHEE Y (B18)/
et
Equity and Commodities futures
debt securities contracts Total
BRARBERES ARHEAN it
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-Rf  —TDF —Z-1% —T-F —E-EF —T—QF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THr TER THET T THx
Proceeds on sales WEMBIE 110,693 183,682 - 62) 110,693 183,620
Less: Cost of sales - EERA (140252  (162,704) - 0 (140252  (162,706)
(29,559) 20,978 - 64) (29,559) 20,914
Unrealised (loss)/gain RERREAAEE
on financial assets at FVTPL FIRC e REEY
FER (BR)/
Wz (217) 33,483 - - (217) 33,483

Net (loss)/gain on financial assets R EH KL A EE
at FVTPL Iz e REEL
(B8 WEFE (29,776) 54,397
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E_—T—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE

8.

10.

120

OTHER INCOME 8. HflrA
2015 2014
—2-1%F —F-MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FBT
Sundry income MIEWA - 210
Interest income from other receivables Hoqth pE YR IE 2 B B A - 55
- 265
FINANCE COSTS 9. RMEMRAE
2015 2014
—ZE-HF —ZT—MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Interest expenses on promissory notes EHEBZFERE 5,798 5,783
Interest expenses on short-term loans REERZFERX 564 747
Interest expenses on securities trading BHREEZIMEMX 124 17
6,486 6,547
TAXATION 10. BB
Current taxation B HA B 18
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the HRAEEREBE-S—RAF+=-A=1+—H
Group incurred a tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 IEFEEHBRHEERE R EREBMEHIE
(2014 Nil). HEE(ZE—mFE &) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

10. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 10. Hi1E (&)
Current taxation (Continued) BUHAREIE (48)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to loss FRMSHAST ARG B REMEAKEER
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and ZBRBAIEEEERAT

other comprehensive income as follows:

2015 2014
—B-HE “Z-mE
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TER % THT %
|
Loss before taxation BHABA (312,636) (112,941)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% REBNEHE16.5%
(2014: 16.5%) (ZZ—EF:165%)
FEZHE (51,585) (16.5) (18,635) (16.5)
Estimated tax effect on income that is not EEERTR N BARY
taxable in determining taxable profit WAZ BEt B2 (3,034) (1.0) (348) (0.3)
Estimated tax effect on expenses that are not TR EART R B A 1
deductiole in determining taxable profit EFPATRE 2 30,678 9.8 8,981 8.0
Estimated tax effect of temporary difference EREB o MANBYE 292 0.1 1,639 1.4
Estimated tax effect of unrecognised tax losses ~ RERHEBHE BT THKTE 23,649 7.6 8,363 7.4
Income tax expense for the year FRAEHREX - - - -
11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 1. FAERE
2015 2014
—Z-RfF —E—MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHx FAT
| |
Loss for the year has been arrived after FREBTENER TS HEER:
charging:
Auditors’ remuneration IZE R B & 350 350
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments ¥ 5 BTN S (AfF12)
(Note 12) 5,656 5,219
Total staff costs, excluding directors’ WMETHRA (TBEEEHE)
emoluments 17,816 13,554
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %  B= LR EITE 9,275 4,660
Legal and professional fee FERREXEBR 1,391 2,212
Operating lease rental in respect of land and T REFZEEHERS
building 13,429 14,039
Equity-settled share-based payments expenses A% 45 E AR (D AE MRz X - 24,671
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E_—T—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICERS’ EMOLUMENTS

12. EERTHRARNS

HE-_Z—hFk-_FT—NF+=-_A=+—H
FTtFEEEMENNAG (ZE—NF  +tR)E
ERTHAHZSAZHMESNNEH LT

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2014: seven)
directors and the chief executive officers for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2015 —E-HF
Contribution
Other to pension
Name of Director/Chief Executive Officer Fee Salary benefits scheme Total
Ri&
BE /TRARES He e HipE R g 5 CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TER TERT
Executive Directors YiTES
Mr. Wong Danny F. (Chairman) IREEE(ZE) - 1,252 1,680 18 2,950
Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick (Notafj) RFBRE (M) - 378 - - 378
Mr. Fong Chi Wah FEERE = 217 = 14 291
Non-executive Directors 17
Ms. Yang XiaoFeng (Notafi) Lt (W) - 194 - 9 203
Mr. Gao Chengming (Notafii) B E (W) - 161 - - 161
Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny (Notafiv)) ZIRERE (M) - 154 - - 154
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFUTES
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen EHREE - 189 - - 189
Mr. Liu Jin Bt - 189 - - 189
Mr. Law Tze Lun BYHEE - 189 - - 189
Chief Executive Officers THER
Mr. Chiu Shung Wai, Vincent (Note () BEERE (MH)) - 503 - 8 511
Ms. Tian Jingjing (Note (i) A&zt () - 433 - 8 a
= 3,919 1,680 57 5,656
2014 —E—pOE
Contribution
Other to pension
Name of Director/Chief Executive Officer Fee Salary benefits scheme Total
R/ TRBHRLES e & HAn g7 BE a5 At
HK$'00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL FET FET THEL
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Wong Danny F. (Chairman) ARELE (F/7) - 756 1,680 17 2,453
Mr. Wu Tse Wi, Frederick (Note(j) RFBEE (W) - 378 - - 378
Mr. Fong Chi Wah AEELE - 277 - 14 291
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Ms. Yang XiaoFeng (Notafi) BBEL L (M) - 378 - 17 395
Mr. Gao Chengming (Notafii) = (M7 (i) - - - - -
Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny (Note(y) BEERE (Hiy) - - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen EHRTAE - 189 - - 189
Mr. Liu Jin Bl - 189 - - 189
Mr. Law Tze Lun BRIH %A - 189 - - 189
Chief Executive Officer THAH
Mr. Chiu Shung Wai, Vincent (Note () BERERE (M) - 1,118 - 17 1,135
- 3,474 1,680 65 5219
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For the year ended 31 December 20

R R e
15 BE_FT-A+-_A=1+—RALFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 12. EERTHEAINE (&)

OFFICERS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Notes: Biat -
(i) Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick resigned as the Chief Executive (i)
Officer (“CEQ”) on 19 May 2014. Mr. Chiu Shung Wai, Vincent
appointed as the CEO on the same date and resigned on 21
April 2015.
(i) Ms. Yang XiaoFeng redesignated as non-executive director on (ii)
11 March 2014 and resigned on 6 July 2015.
(iii) Mr. Gao Chengming appointed on 4 March 2015. (iii)
(v)  Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny appointed on 17 March 2015. (iv)

(v) Ms. Tian Jingjing appointed as the CEO on 21 April 2015 and (v)
resigned on 31 August 2015.

RIBAER=-_T—OFRABT+NLABT
TRES B HEELEREBERTA
THEH THR-_Z—RFEMNA-+—B&
fFo

BRELZTITN _T-—NF=A+—HHAE
BIERTEE WR_T—RFLANHE
£

BWMEEN T -—AF=RANAEEZE-

BIMBEEEN T —AF=—ATLHEZ
£

HReEZIR—_ZE—hAFNA=-+—RHEZ
EARITRERS YR—_E—RFENA=1+—
HEHE-

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there was REZE_Z-—RFR_Z-—NMFE+_A=1+—
no arrangement under which a director or CEO waived or agreed AILFE  SARESHITHRARMEXRER
to waive any emoluments. EEMME 22

For both years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no BHE_Z-—RFR-_Z-—MNF+-_HA=+—H
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or CEO as an EFE - NREE B R E S RTTBARE S
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation TER/MAREE 2 LR RERE -

for loss of office.

The number of the directors and CEO fell within the following ERRITRAHZMSERINT

bands:

Number of directors and CEO

ESRTBARAR

2015 2014

—B-RF —T—mF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 T %1,000,0007% 7T 10 9
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 7L £1,500,0007% 7T -

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,600,00178 7L %2,000,0007% 7T - -

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017% 7T 22,500,000/ 7T - 1

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 1 -

1 11
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E_—T—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE

13. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 13. SR EBEAESMERESHF AL

AND INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

(@) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included one executive director
(2014: one) whose emoluments were reflected in the
analysis presented in Note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements. The emoluments of the remaining four
individuals (2014: four) were as follows:

(a)

EfNBEEHEAL

AEEFAINESHFALH BFE—
Z2(ZF—MOF:—R)ATES HLH
EOREAMBHRERMEI12AZ25 2D
Frep Rk K A+ (ZF— M4
mE) 2MEmT :

2015 2014
—E-AHE —T—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT

Salaries and other short-term e kEMGHESRT
employee benefits 5,261 4,139
Contribution to pension scheme RIRSET B R 36 35
5,297 4174

The emoluments of the four individuals (2014: four), included
four individuals (2014: four) of senior management, with the
highest emoluments are within the following band:

ME(ZE—NF:NE2)EeiH AL
(BRNEZ (ZZE—UE:NR) S &EE
AB)ZB&#ARIMT

Number of individuals

AB
2015 2014
—E-hfF —FT-mF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 231,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7L % 1,500,0007% 7T 2 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T % 2,000,000/ 7T 1 -
4 4
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE-_ZT—RAF+_A=+—HILtFE

13. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 13. SR EBAEMERESH AL

AND INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST (#&)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Senior management of the Company (b) ZXAFRIZEREEAER
The emoluments of the senior management of the Company AR EBREBAEZHMESERNMAT
are within the following band:
Number of individuals
AE
2015 2014
—B-HF —Z—F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z %1,000,000/% 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T £=1,500,000/8 7T 2 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,000/8 7T 1 -
4 4
During the year, no bonus was paid to the five highest paid A HERMAEERUERFATE
individuals of the Group (2014: Nil). No emoluments were A (ZE—NF E) AEBEHE
paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals MAEMNESHFALTZAMESEAMAR
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as a SERENBERAE (T —NE:
compensation for loss of office (2014: Nil). ®) o
14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE
The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of ARBEETEBRNBEZE_E—HAFE_ZF
a dividend in respect of both years ended 31 December 2015 and —mNE+_A=+—RHALMAFEZRE -

2014.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZ=—ZT—RAF+-A=+—HILFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BIREHE

ARBHEAAREZERERNREEBERTR
THIBEE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

2015 2014

—B-IfF —F—[OF

Loss HK$’°000 HK$’000

B8 FERT FHIT
Loss for the purpose of basic and FTEERARREEEER

diluted loss per share HAZEE (312,636) (112,941)

2015 2014

— —E-mF

Number of shares ’000 '000

BRHEE TR’ TFh
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 71 & & A F AN 2 855 B 1B
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss Rz BB NE T8

per share 1,697,213 1,356,501

HE-_ZT—HAFE+_A=+—HILFE F&
FREREERRA 2 EBRINEFLSE8E 5%
RZF—RAF+ZA+—HBERZREEZFE
EHAE (ZE—NF RO RN —NF
“AZ+—H - ZE—HWFENAT+RBEK=Z
—MFENAZ T ZHEKZEREEE 272
EL ) -

The weighted average of ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculating basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2015 have been adjusted for the effect of placing completed on 11
December 2015 (2014: adjusted for the effects of both rights issue
and placing completed on 21 February 2014, 15 August 2014 and
22 September 2014 respectively).

BE_ZT—hAF+_A=+—BLtFE BR
AANB 2 MARITHEBREEARBESE  WET

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company’s
outstanding share options were not included in the calculation

of diluted loss per share because the effects of the Company’s
outstanding share options were anti-dilutive. For the year ended
31 December 2014, the Company’s outstanding share options
and warrants were not included in the calculation of diluted loss
per share because the effects of the Company’s outstanding share
options and warrants were anti-dilutive.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ BERRE
Furniture
Leasehold and Office Motor
improvement fixtures  equipment ~ Computer vehicles Yacht Total
BENXLE HARRE BLAERE B AE iz it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

At cost TN

At1 January 2014 RZT-ME-A—AH 3,548 2,125 474 683 5,563 24,500 36,893
Additions i 295 159 2 47 2,162 - 2,685
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - - - - (24,500) (24,500)
Written off ik (3,597) - - - - - (3,597)

At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R =Z—P4&E

+=ZA=+-BR

—Z-nf-A-A 246 2,284 496 730 7,725 - 11,481
Additions b 17,876 6,815 360 1,003 765 - 26,819
Disposals HE - (727) (265) (683) - - (1,675)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1F

+=A=1+-8 18,122 8372 591 1,050 8,490 - 36,625
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE
At1 January 2014 RZZ-ME-A—A 1,872 1,198 280 512 1,048 817 5,727
Charge for the year FAZH 1,254 258 68 125 1,322 1,633 4,660
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B2 AR - - - - - (2,450) (2,450)
Written off ik (3,072) - - - - - (3,072)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R =T —4E

+ZA=+-BR

—Z-nf-A-A 54 1,456 348 637 2,370 - 4,865
Charge for the year FAZE 5,133 2,11 11 319 1,601 - 9,275
Elimination on disposals HER K - (721) (265) (689) - - (1,675)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—1F

+=A=1-8 5,187 2,840 194 273 3971 - 12,465
Net book value BEFE
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-1F

+=B=+-8 12,935 5,532 397 7 4,519 - 24,160
At 31 December 2014 RZE-IF

+=A=+-8 192 828 148 93 5,355 - 6,616
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZ=—ZT—RAF+-A=+—HILFE

17. OTHER TANGIBLE ASSETS

17. BB EE

HK$’000
FERT
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014, RZE—NFEF—A—RB -ZZ2—@F
1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 +—A=+—H-ZZ—RF—A—8K
—E—RF+=-A=+—H 21,730
Accumulated impairment RitRE
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014, 1 January 2015 RZE—NF—A—H ZFT—0WF
+=—A=+—H - ZZE—HF—HA—H -
Impairment for the year FRRE 3,054
At 31 December 2015 RZBE—RF+ZA=+—H 3,054
Carrying amount RESHE
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-—HFE+=-A=+—8H 18,676
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF+=—A=+—H 21,730

The amount represents the aggregate cost of art work, diamond
and diamond ring held by the Group. During the year ended
31 December 2015, the directors of the Company, after
referencing to professional valuation reports, determined that
there are impairment loss of approximately HK$3,054,000 as the
recoverable amounts of the other tangible assets were below their
carrying amounts.

The recoverable amount of other tangible assets are determined
based on its fair value less costs to disposal by market comparison
method. The value of the assets assessed by comparing the asset
being valued to comparable items recently sold. Using similar units
of comparison, adjustments are made, based on the elements of
comparison, to the sales prices of the comparable. The fair value
hierarchy is level 2.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A RS R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. REHE QT 2 Em

AEBERBERR ZERFABOT

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Details of the Group’s interests in associates are as follows:

2015 2014
—E-AF —Z—mF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Cost of investment in associates /N g = § 7N
— Unlisted —3JELm™ - 23
Share of post-acquisition loss and other FEMR U B B BB R E A 2 I
comprehensive income, net of dividends pR B UAR B
received
— Unlisted (Note (i) —3E kT (HfaEa)) - (23)
Amounts due from an associate (Note (j)) JE Ui Bt ) R FRIE (BT aE3)
— Unlisted —3E kT 30,000 35,977
Less: share of post-acquisition loss and O RN EBE R
other comprehensive income, net of HEtemmikas
dividends received R BB B
— Unlisted (Notes (i) and (i) —3E LT (B aF R (i) (14,805) (7,585)
15,195 28,392
Impairment loss on amount due from an JE Ui B & R R RUIB 2 R B & 1B
associate (Note (iv)) (Biz(v)) - (4,454)
15,195 23,938
Total k] 15,195 23,938
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ERE TR R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZ—ZT—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(CO
Notes:

0

(i)

(i)

(iv)

NTINUED)

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Company will not demand
repayment within one year from the end of reporting period and
are therefore considered as non-current.

On 14 November 2011, Chance Luck Holdings Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, has entered into an
agreement with Rui Shing Holdings Limited, and Long Holdings
Limited to establish Tumas Holdings Limited (“Tumas Holdings”),
incorporated under the laws of British Virgin Islands. The
principal activities of Tumas Holdings and its subsidiaries are
development and manufacturing of yacht. The investment cost
amounted to approximately HK$23,000.

On 30 September 2015, the Group disposed its 100% interest
in Chance Luck Holdings Limited, which holds 30% interest in
Tumas Holdings at the consideration of approximately HK$8
(equivalent to US$1).

On 17 April 2014, Essence Sharp Holdings Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, has established Medisun
Holdings (Overseas) Limited (“Medisun Holdings”), incorporated
under the laws of British Virgin Islands. The principal activities
of Medisun Holdings and its subsidiaries are development
of bio-pharmaceutical and regenerative medicine system
and products. The investment cost amount to approximately
HK$800 and the Group’s share of loss of associate for the year
31 December 2015 amounted to approximately HK$8,743,000
(2014: HK$6,062,000).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the amount due
from an associate form part of the Group’s net investment and
the Group’s share the excess part of loss in an associate for
the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 were amounted to
approximately HK$8,743,000 and HK$6,062,000 respectively.

The carrying amount of amount due from an associate is
reduced to its recoverable amount which is determined by
reference to the estimation of future cash flow expected to be
generated from the associate.
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

PN & A R A AR 8 MEEE
BRY-ARAEERR ARATERA
2MBAREFT —FRAEREE  BRRIEE
mE

RZFE——F+—A+HEA - AEEZZ
& [} /&8 A A]Chance Luck Holdings Limited£2
Rui Shing Holdings Limited )2 Long Holdings
Limited#T 37 13 & * LA BK 32 Tumas Holdings
Limited ([ Tumas Holdings | 18 #% & B & &
BYE RAEFEMAL) » Tumas Holdings & L Fff
BARZEEXEBRRAERBENME - KE
B 7 #93£23,000/ 7T ©

RZFE—RAFNA=TH FAEBERE
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18.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ERE R R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE T —RAF+_A=+—HILtFE
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REtE ARz = (&)
(CONTINUED)

Details of the Group’s associates which are held indirectly by the
Company at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

E—hF+-A=+—H BEARAEE

FEZAEEBRERR ZFHBNT

Proportion of
Principal Class of nominal value Proportion
Name of Form of Place of Fully paid place of shares of issued share of voting  Principal
associate entity incorporation share capital operation held capital held power held  activity
e Fri
BEARELHE {1 ERRIEYE  CARBA TEEENY FRROEN BAEELA EELA  TEEB
Medisun Holdings Incorporated British Virgin Islands  US$50,000 Hong Kong Ordinary 30% 30% (Note (i) Investment
holdings
Medisun Holdings & fAXaz EBREAHS 50,0003 T % L@ 30%  30% (M)  BREER
Hong Kong National  Incorporated Hong Kong HK$5 Hong Kong Ordinary 20% 20% (Note (i) Dormant
Investments Fund
Limited
EEARESEE  #MKu ) 58T 6 gl 20%  20% (M) @ EEEZR
BRAR

Details of the Group’s associates which are held indirectly by the
Company at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

E/\\—__

—ME+-—A=1+—H BEARAEE

REZASBEBERB ZHBOT:

Proportion of
Principal Class of nominal value Proportion
Name of Form of Place of Fully paid place of shares of issued share ofvoting  Principal
associate entity incorporation share capital operation held capital held power held  activity
B % P
e UNGIEA EEA Ealive:Ed ERRRA FEEENE ARROEN  RAEEL RERLO  FEEH
Tumas Holdings Incorporated British Virgin Islands - US$10,000 Hong Kong Ordinary 30% 30%(Note () Investment
holdings
Tumas Holdings R HBRUHEE 10,0005 7T o LBk 30%  30% (Hp) BERER
Medisun Holdings Incorporated British Virgin Islands  US$50,000 Hong Kong Ordinary 30% 30% (Note (i)~ Investment
holdings
Medisun Holdings ~ &EfltAXSL HBRUHEE 50,0005 7T & ti@ 30%  30% (MEh) RERK

Notes:

(0} The Group holds 30% of the issued share capital of Tumas
Holdings. The directors of the Company consider that the
Group does have significant influence over Tumas Holdings and
it is therefore classified as an associate of the Group. Tumas
Holdings was disposed on 30 September 2015.

(i) The Group holds 30% of the issued share capital of Medisun
Holdings. The directors of the Company consider that the Group
does have significant influence over Medisun Holdings and it is
therefore classified as an associate of the Group.

(i

7N & B #5  Tumas Holdings 2 30% 2 % 17
AR -ARAAFEZERR A& EHTumas
Holdings® E A& 71 it E 5B R K
SEZBEAR -AKRER_ZT—AF A
=+ H ! & Tumas Holdings °

7N £ [ 5 A Medisun Holdings 2 30% & % 17
fRAR - RAREFR A A& B ¥ Medisun
Ho|dingsﬁi7k$& 27 ABESBERAE
ESEI A N

=

AR EESBRDA 2015FK 131



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR BT IRAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E_—T—AF+-_A=+—HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) The Group holds 20% of the issued share capital of Hong Kong
National Investments Fund Limited (“Hong Kong National”). The
directors of the Company consider that the Group does have
significant influence over Hong Kong National and it is therefore
classified as an associate of the Group.

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
associates is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the associates’ financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity method
in these consolidated financial statements.

18. REtE QA2 (F)

#riz - (&)

iy AEEFHEEERRESETEEERAA([F
BB ) Z20%E BITRA - N ARIESRR
B AEEHAESEARBEEATYE N Bt
BESBEAREE ZHE QT -

ERAKERBENRZMBERBZHIIN
T TXMAIZHBEER B EIRRE R FIRR
FEMBERELEARR BRI EE -

PRA %S & R RIA A S AT AL S
g ®K -

Tumas Holdings

2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current assets MBEE - 9,610
Non-current assets ERBEE - 1,412
Current liabilities mEAE = (2,888)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE - (12,000)
Revenue W g - 223
Loss for the year FREE - (709)
Loss attributable to the Group AEEFENEE - -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A RS R TR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE-—T—RAF+_A=+—HILtFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REtE NTI 2R (&)
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the il B RS B R E B AR A B S R NPT RE R
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the BERNR R KA IR

consolidated financial statements:

Tumas Holdings

2015 2014
“E-EHF —T—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET

Net liabilities attributable to the owners of ZHE AR AEANELFAE
the associate = -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7~ 52 & 7 Tumas Holdings 2

in Tumas Holdings BRI Nil £& 30%
Share of post-acquisition loss and other eI R BB R EM A E

comprehensive loss, net of dividends B8 - MR E R E

received - -

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in K& B Tumas Holdings 2
Tumas Holdings w2 BRE S & - -
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IRE RS R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E_—T—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REFE N T 2R (F)
(CONTINUED)

Medisun Holdings
2015 2014
—ZE-HF —ZT—MmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT F#ET
Current assets MENEE 1,115 25,484
Non-current assets SERBEE 245,095 185,290
Current liabilities mENEE (14,165) -
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (269,614) (265,191)
Revenue g 154 52
Loss for the year FNEE (29,142) (20,208)
Loss attributable to the Group AL B AL EE (8,743) (6,062)

134  National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2015



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B BT IAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE T —RAF+_A=+—HILtFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REE RNAl 2 fEx= ()
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the B s B R E B A B S R AT RE RN
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the BERNR R RAS R IR

consolidated financial statements:

Medisun Holdings

2015 2014
—E-HF —ET-MF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHERT FHET
Net liabilities attributable to the owners of ZMERNRERAEGFEE
the associate (37,569) (54,417)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7~ 52 & 7 Medisun Holdings 2
in Medisun Holdings A R s L D 30% 30%
Share of post-acquisition loss and other eI R BB R EM AP E
comprehensive loss, net of dividends B8 - R E AR B
received (11,271) (16,325)
Amount due from an associate JFE AT B N R SRR 30,000 30,000
Others E1 (3,534) 10,263
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in 7K £ B 7 Medisun Holdings 2
Medisun Holdings Em s RA e 15,195 23,938

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E_—T—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REEE N Rl 2= (&)
(CONTINUED)
Hong Kong National
EFHBER

2015 2014
—E-HF s
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FBT FHET
Current assets MENEE - -
Non-current assets JERENE EE - -
Current liabilities mMENBE - -
Non-current liabilities SERBEE - -
Revenue e - -
Loss for the year FREE - -
Loss attributable to the Group AEEENEE - -
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ERE R R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REEE N Rl 2= (&)
(CONTINUED)
Recondiliation of the above summarised financial information to the LAl B E RSB BRI R AT RN
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the N W el 1T s

consolidated financial statements:

Hong Kong National

EHER
2015 2014
—E-®HfF —T-mE
HK$000 HK$'000
FT FHT

Net liabilities attributable to the owners of the ZEEE A RIHA ABEFEE

associate -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest  ANEE BN E % 2

in Hong Kong National B ERERLLD 20% Nil £
Share of post-acquisition loss and other JEMR g 1B 1B R Ao

comprehensive loss, net of dividends ZHEEE R EWARE

received = -

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in AEBREBBRE 2

Hong Kong National 2 BRE SR - -
Unrecognised share of losses of associates AERZEGHE ARER

2015 2014

—E—FEF —E—4E

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

The unrecognised share of loss of an RIER 2 BIGEHE R RFAEE

associate for the year - (213)
2015 2014

—2-1%F —F-MmF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET
Cumulative share of loss of an associate ZEEEEE A FEE = (1,523)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E_—T—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 19. It ELREE
ASSETS
2015 2014
—E-HF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHT FHET
Unlisted securities JELETMES

— debt securities —fEBESH 17,004 13,444
— equity securities — A FEFH 59,344 194,864
76,348 208,308
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHxT FET

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEWBENONA:
Non-current assets JERBEE 59,344 194,864
Current assets MEEE 17,004 13,444
76,348 208,308
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-—ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

19. AHHESREE (&)

LWTAR-_ZE—RFR-_ZTE—NF+=-A
=t+—HzAHEESREESX:

The following is a list of AFS financial assets as at 31 December
2015 and 2014:

Net assets/
Proportion (liabilities)
share capital  attributable to Fair value Fair value
owned asat the Group as at as at asat
31 December 31 December Costof 31 December 31 December
Name of equity/debt securities 2015 2015 investment 2015 2014
R-Z-1F
R=B-1F t+=ZA=+-H
TZAZ+-B AREEAZ R-Z-1F RT-0NF
FERRE BEFE/ +=A=+-B T=ZA=+—-H
BE/BHEES 4B Bt (BEER) RERE ZAREE ZRNERE
(%) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET T THT
Equity securities issued by: UTARRTZRARES:
- HEC Capital Limited (‘HEC”) (Notes (i) —HEC Capital Limited ([HEC |)
(Hz0)) N/A FER N/A R &R 49,283 - 56,140
- Upperclass Developments Limited —Upperclass Developments
(“Upperclass’) (Note (i) Limited ( [Upperclass | )
(Hizi) 30 30,558 - - -
— Freeman Corporation Limited (‘Freeman’) -REZERERAR ([RE])
(Note (iv) and (vi)) (Hrzt i) N/A 38 N/A T3 59,850 - 50,154
- Smart Role Limited (“Smart Role”) (Note v)) —Smart Role Limited
([SmartRole]) (A1) 8 57,057 59,680 59,344 59,503
~ Kingswood Shine Limited (‘Kingswood”) - $EmERAR ([8m])
(Note (7)) (Hiztw)) N/A FER N/A R &R 40,000 - 29,067
- Co-Lead Holdings Limited (“Co-Lead") —Co-Lead Holdings Limited
(Notes (i) and (i) ([Co-Lead ])
(W& w)) N/A RER N/A R &R 49,628 - -
Debt securities issued by: UTFARRTZERRS:
- Premium Castle Limited (‘Premium Castle”) —Premium Castle Limited
(Note (vii)) ([Premium Castle |)
(Wit ip) N/A 38 N/A T3 12,056 15,204 13,444
- Up Energy Development Group Limited —Up Energy Development Group
(“Up Energy’) (Note (ix)) Limited ( [Up Energy ])
(Hitix) N/A RER N/A Ri# f 50,125 - -
- The American Club —The American Club
(“American Club”) (Note fx)) ([American Club | )
(Hite) N/A R f N/A R & f 1,800 1,800 -
76,348 208,308
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZ—ZT—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

0

(i)

The unlisted equity securities and unlisted debt securities are
measured at fair value and are classified as Level 3 fair value
measurement. The fair value of unlisted equity securities is
estimated by applying price-to-book ratios for similar listed
companies and reference to the market value of underlying
net assets and adjusted to reflect the specific circumstance of
the investments. The fair value of debt element of the unlisted
debt securities is calculated based on the present value of
contractually determined stream of future cash flows discounted
at the required yield, which was determined with reference to
the credit rating of the issuers of the unlisted debt securities and
the maturity terms. The effective interest rate is 9.87% (2014:
10.11%).

HEC is an exempted company incorporated in Cayman Islands
with limited liability on 11 April 2012. It is principally engaged
in investment holding. After forming the HEC, there was a
capital reorganisation among HEC, Cordoba Homes Limited
(“Cordoba”) and Hennabun Capital Group Limited (“‘HCG”) (“the
Reorganisation”). During the Reorganisation, the Group received
the same number of equity securities in HEC in exchange for
the equity securities in Cordoba and HCG. The Reorganisation
was completed on 30 April 2012. On that date, the Group held
1.80% equity interest of HEC which directly and indirectly owned
100% equity interest of Cordoba and HCG respectively. No
dividend was entitled to the Group during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

On 17 June 2015, the Group has entered into a loan agreement
with Longtop Enterprises Limited (“Longtop Loan Agreement”),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on
5 February 2007. Pursuant to the terms of the Longtop Loan
Agreement, the Group transferred the AFS financial assets with
8,200,000 shares in HEC (representing 0.89% issued shares of
HEC) and 210 shares in Co-Lead (representing 5.11% issued
shares of Co-Lead), in exchange for partial repayment of the
loan amounting to HK$22,500,000. The transfer of shares was
completed on 28 July 2015 (please refer to Note 26 for details).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-—ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(V)

Unlisted equity securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant and the probabilities of the various
estimates cannot be reasonably assessed, such unlisted equity
securities are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period.

On 8 April 2013, Top Onward Development Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, has entered into agreement with
Mr. Li, a shareholder of Upperclass which incorporated under
the laws of British Virgin Islands, in relation to the acquisition
of 30% equity interest and the transfer of contractual right to
receive another receivable owed by Upperclass. This resulted
in an indirectly held of approximately 16% equity interest in
Hua Tong International Leasing Co., Limited (“Hua Tong”),
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited
liability. The principal activities of Hua Tong are leasing. The
investment cost and other receivable amount to HK$234 and
approximately HK$40,800,000 respectively, and the transaction
was completed on 30 December 2013. The Group is unable to
exercise significant influence over Upperclass and Hua Tong as
they do not have the power to appoint any of its director and do
not participate in its policy-making processes.

On 24 September 2014, Up Wonderful Limited (“Up
Wonderful”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, has
entered into agreement with Freeman (formerly known as
Advance Best Limited) which incorporated under laws of
Cayman Islands with limited liability, in relation to the subscription
of 21,000,000 shares which represent 1.80% equity interest of
Freeman. No dividend was entitled to the Group during the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

On 24 September 2014, Massive Shine Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, has entered into agreement with
Trillion Cheer Toprich Limited (“Trillion Cheer”), a shareholder of
Smart Role which incorporated under the laws of British Virgin
Islands with limited liability. This result in an indirectly held in
8% equity interest of 7 (2 # ) 2 M A R A 7] (“Hancheng
Bazhong”), incorporated under the People’s Republic of China
with limited liability. The principal activities of Hancheng Bazhong
are holding of the Forest Rights Certificates. The investment cost
amount to approximately HK$59,680,000, and the transaction
was completed on 24 September 2014. No dividend was
entitled to the Group during the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014.

19. AHHESREE (&)

#riz - (&)

(i)

(v)

IF £ T RR A S AR A B T 5 b I SR (E
meaBARBEZGHFTEEAKR BZHEM
St AR EE R AT - AR S 2HAR
WA R E BRI EB BT E-

RZZE—=FNAN\B HHEZEEERA
Al (AKBEZz2EWE R F)EUpperclass
(BRERBELHEEEIMKLIZA
ABRRELELETL—DHE RS AR
I B8 Upperclass 2 30% % # & & & Ug BY
Upperclass# /X 2 5 — £ EGRIB 2 & 1T
Ao EgMERAERERHEEERA
Al (IE@] AP EARKEMBEFMAL L 2
BRETAR)H16%KRIE - TR T BER
RIRE - IRE KA R E A EUFIED Bl £234
7 70 & #740,800,000 70 MR ZHER —Z
—=%F+= A=+ H5%K - AR Upperclass
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Role (1RIE HEE X B S A EFMAKLZ
AR & T2 A) M ETrillion Cheer Toprich
Limited ([Trillion Cheer | ) 57 32 — 5 1 % °
GREYEEFEER (EFR)BMRERA
A (DEBEF ] R E AR A B A
VYZ2BEBREFERT) 28%MME EFE
PEEEBRBAMBEZ - REXNELN A
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(vii  On 5 September 2014, Luxwealth Development Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, has entered into
agreement with Uprite Limited (“Uprite”), a shareholder of
Kingswood which incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability on 25 July 2014, in relation to the acquisition of 50%
equity interest of a yacht and marine facilities amount to
HK$40,000,000, and the transaction was completed on 5
September 2014. The Group is unable to exercise significant
influence over Kingswood as it does not have the power to
appoint any of its director and does not participate in its policy-

making processes.

On 9 September 2015, the Company has entered a sale and
purchase agreement with Winning Trio Limited (“Winning”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability. Under the sale and purchase agreement, the Group
disposed 50% equity interest of Kingswood at a consideration
of HK$10,000,000. The difference was recognised as loss on
disposal of a subsidiary (please refer to Note 33 for details).

For the year ended 31 December 2014, impairment loss
of approximately HK$10,933,000 was recognised as the
management expected that the recoverable amount generated
from the underlying assets would be less than previously
expected. The recoverable amount of Kingswood has been
determined by reference to the transaction prices, or valuation
multiples implicit in the transactions prices, of identical or
similar assets on the market. The discount for the useful life and
condition of the underlying assets was ranged from 10% to 20%

for the year ended 31 December 2014.

(vi)  On 19 June 2015, Up Wonderful, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, has entered share swap agreement with Co-
Lead, a company incorporated under the laws of British Virgin
Islands with limited liability. Under the share swap agreement,
the Group transfer the AFS financial assets with 21,000,000
shares in Freeman (representing 1.80% issued shares of
Freeman) in exchange 210 new issued shares of Co-Lead with
approximately 5.11% of the enlarged issued shares capital of
Co-Lead. The transaction was completed on 24 June 2015.

The investment cost amount to approximately HK$49,628,000
(equivalent with the fair value of the share exchange of Co-
Lead’s issued shares). The fair value was referencing to
professional valuation report. No dividend was entitled to the

Group during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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19. AHHESREE (&)

#riz - (&)

(V)

(vii)

RZZE—NFNLARA  BREREBRAT
(REBEZ2EHBAR)EERH (K=
—FE+A=-t+RBEEEFMALZER
A 7)) B% B Uprite Limited ([Uprite | ) 5T 32 —
D g NAH WS — 0 koK £
Z50%%4E - 35 & & %8 540,000,000 7T ©
REENR_E—NENARBTK -BRE
MERZTHEIMNES NESLEERER
2 AR EELAHERITEERTES -

RZZE—AFHANB K2R F EWinning
Trio Limited ( [Winning | * R B X B S5+
iz BREERR) I —HEERZ -
R E & % - A% E 2K (810,000,000
T EBM250%RE - ZEEEERA/LE
MENF &S (FER2HMES3) »

BE_Z—WFE+-A=+—HIFE &H
REBERHRABEE AL SEEDR
2% A1) T8 AP - H A 3R R (L85 8. 4910,933,000/%8
TLe 8z AT Bl £ RE T 2 RS R
HEEEZRHERARZEKSI B ZIEE
EHET - BE-_E—WE+=-_A=+—H
WEFE BEEEZAFERATHRAMRDITE
N F10%E20% °

RZZT—ARFNA+NHE  Up Wonderful (2
£E 22 &K A7) ECo-Lead (RIEHBE
RS EEFMAL 2 BRAR) I —1%
B ERGZ - RERDERGH ~NEE
g ] i H & & BhE E21,000,0000% R &A%
?(HERREEETRM21.80%) * AR
#1210/% Co-Lead#T 2 8 1782 15 (48 & 1 Co-
Lead#TIEA B BITIRALS5.11% ) - RHER
—T—RAFXNA-tMAREK-

& B AR 4 549,628,000 7T (102 7 Co-
LeadB EITRH 2RO R Z A AEE) °
AREEDNSREEFEREET - A5H
RNBE-_ZE—hGE+-_A=1+—RHILEEE
RS -
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(il

(ix)

Premium Castle and the Group have agreed to settle the Loan
Receivable by entering into a new subscription agreement
(“Subscription Agreement”) on 24 December 2013 and
subscribed a new convertible note issued by Premium
Castle (“New Premium Castle CN”) with principal amount
of HK$18,600,000, which comprise principle amount and
outstanding interest of HK$17,000,000 and approximately
HK$1,600,000 respectively from the outstanding Premium
Castle CN. The completion of the subscription took place on 25
February 2014. Details of the Subscription Agreement were set
out in the Company’s announcement dated on 24 December
2013.

Initial recognition of the debt element of the New Premium
Castle CN and the conversion options element of the New
Premium Castle CN in accordance with HKAS 39, amounting to
approximately HK$12,056,000 and HK$6,224,000 respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, the principal amount of the New
Premium Castle CN is HK$18,600,000 (2014: HK$18,600,000).
There was no disposal or redemption during the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014. No dividend was entitled to the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

On 12 June 2015, the Group subscribed a convertible note
issued by Up Energy Development Group Limited (“Up Energy
CN”) with a principal amount of HK$50,000,000 with interest
at 5% per annum and maturity on 31 December 2018. Full
conversion of the Up Energy CN will result in conversion into
67,069,081 ordinary shares of Up Energy as to the conversion
date. Up Energy and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in development and construction of coal mining and coke
processing facilities.

The fair value at initial recognition of the debt element and the
conversion option element of the Up Energy CN, amounting
to approximately HK$34,722,000 and HK$15,403,000
respectively, are measured in accordance with HKAS 39.

On 30 July 2015, the Company disposed the Up Energy CN
at a consideration of HK$10,000,000. The difference was
recognised as loss on disposal of AFS financial assets.

19. AHHESREE (&)

#riz - (&)

(viil

(ix)

Premium CastlefE R EBREZER T —=F
+-A-tWARAYHFRE R ([REWH
&) B RRE R iR Premium Castle
FiT %17 78 % %8 /418,600,000 7T 2 1 7] 32 i
Z & ([#7Premium Castlef[#5 Z ) - &
8 7N & R8 B 15 oK JE & 2 Premium CastleA] 32
B Z 4%~ 7K 4 EE17,000,0007% 7T K2 AR 1B 12 F|
B.491,600,000/8 T - REEEN T —MF
ZAZT+HABEK -REBEFBHIREAR
AERAE—T—=F+_A-—t+WMNBEZAS%
B

BIEEB S ERFEI0R I P BRI
Premium Castler] #2 i =& 2 (E 7% 3610 K& 37
Premium CastleP] # i% 4% 7 AR ZB 10 7
7114912,056,0007% 7T 56,224,000/ JT ©

NR-ZTBE—HAE+=-A=+—08" #FHPremium
Castlen] #2 i% Z 4% 2 7K & #8 £18,600,0007%
7t (== — P04 :18,600,000/8 7T) - REE
—E-hAFER-_FT-NF+=-_A=+—H1i
MEFELHEETHERED REE=-Z
—RAFERZTE—NF+ZA=+—HIME
FE ANEEYERERRKE -

RoB—REANAT-H NEEREEER
EREREBERARBTZABRER
(MBRARRZE]) - BIRATREEE 2 A
% %8 450,000,000/ 7t © 1% & FI| 5%t B -
R-ZE—N\EFE+_A=+—RHIH -28=
BRI BEBESAEIRAERA
67,069,081I% Bk & @R - Bk R KK B A
RAIFENEERLEEFERERMIZ
iR

BRI 2 BRI RIRRAE 5 R
VI HERE 2 AR EED B4 /534,722,000
77T 115,403,000/ 7T JHIR B B @ 5T 28
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

() On 23 March 2015, the Company subscribed a debenture
issued by the American Club (the “Debenture”) with a principal
amount of HK$625,000 at a consideration of HK$1,800,000.
The completion of the subscription took place on 1 June 2015.

The following is the analysis of fair value change of AFS financial
assets for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014:

Name of unlisted equity/debt securities

FEMRE MEREEER

19. It EEREE (&)

#riz - (&)

® R-ZE—AF=A-+=0 ARRREH
American ClubZ 1T 2 E#H ([E#E])
7N % ¥8 /625,000% 7t + X B /1,800,000/%
T RBEEER-_Z—HEAA—HBHR
Bk o

UWTAEABEEZE_TE—RAFKR_ZT—NFE+_A
=t HLEFEAHEESHEEZ ANERE
B H AT

Change in fair value during
the year ended 31 December

REBETHFEFE+=RA=1+—R

LEEZARBEEED
2015 2014
—Z-RfF —Z—FE
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fa T FHET

Unlisted equity securities issued by:

AT ABEITZ I EMIRARFS

-HEC —HEC (6,940) 14,248

- Freeman -RE 9,696 (9,696)

— Smart Role —Smart Role (160) (177)
Unlisted debt security issued by: AT RARIBITZIELEMERES

— Premium Castle —Premium Castle 519 472

20. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN 20. TRREBEREZRRE
CONVERTIBLE NOTES

2015 2014

—Z—HF —ZT-MF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

At beginning of the year 1) 2,453 -

Addition B 15,403 6,224

Fair value change AU R =) (1,414) (3,771)

Disposal HE (15,403) -

At end of the year FIR 1,039 2,453
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE - =

20. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE NOTES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

0

(i)

(i)

Conversion options embedded in convertible notes represented
the conversion option element of the convertible notes
subscribed by the Group and are measured at fair value using
the binomial option pricing model at initial recognition and
at the end of each reporting period. The debt element of the
convertible notes is classified as AFS financial assets.

As explained in Note 19, the Group subscribed New Premium
Castle CN during the year ended 31 December 2014 and
amount of approximately HK$6,224,000 was recognised as
conversion option embedded in convertible note which was
measured at fair value at initial recognition. At 31 December
2015, the carrying amount of conversion option in New
Premium Castle CN was approximately HK$1,039,000 (2014:
HK$2,453,000).

As explained in Note 19, the Group subscribed Up Energy CN
during the year and amount of approximately HK$15,403,000
was recognised as conversion option embedded in convertible
note which was measured at fair value at initial recognition.
The Group disposed Up Energy CN on 30 July 2015 and the
carrying amount of the conversion option embedded in Up
Energy CN was approximately HK$15,403,000 at that date.

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

R IR Mt
—HEF+-AS+—BLFE

20. TRREBERS 2BRKE (&)

M

U

(i

)

AHBRERRBERE 2 B A K E PR
BRER 2 R - IR ) R K
EERHBRANA - BARREERLARR
BEFE - AREREZEHHOIDER
AfHESREE-

BAnKT 1R TR A AEBMPBEE_T—N
F+ - A =+—H8 - FERB FPremium
Castlen] # i% 22 4% » i1 496,224,000/ 7T 2 &
HEERBIBRBERANS ZBRRE IR
N ERBEANEBEFE-R_Z—HF
+=HA=+—8 " #Premium Castle F]#Z =
BAE 2 RRRER 2 BRE$ 5 4) /41,039,000
BT (ZZF— U4 : 2,453,000 7T) °

:@%ﬁuwﬁwﬁﬁfﬁi AEEFRNRBERA

a5 Z= 4% - 1 #915,408,00078 T 2 & %8 © FE
Jﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ*‘mﬁmﬁﬁxﬁé TiRA ¥ 5
REEAREBENE - ASEER=-_Z—1
FHrA=Z+THLHEERITRRER  mMER
ARBRERANES 2 BEERZAZRES5E
#49/15,403,0007 7T

21. REZREAAREBEIRZER

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE
2015 2014
—E-RF —mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Held-for-trading: BEEE
Equity securities, at fair value ARFES EAAEE
— listed in Hong Kong —REBLET 2,663 120,112
The following is a list of the held-for-trading investments as at 31 LTFAERZZE—RAF+_A=+—H2Z2HHEE
December 2015: ﬁ&éﬁ@ﬁ% :
Bt EH e HRAA 2015FK 145
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong: REBE LM ZRAES
Place of Net assets
Name of incorporation attributable
equity and kind of Number of Interest to the Cost of Fair Change in
security legal entity shares held held Company investment value fair value
TR LR KA T LS
RAZS 2B EEERER FisRHBE s’z BERE REMA NAEE DAEEESD
(%) ’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fr TER FER TR
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. People’s Republic 146,000 0.0006 RMB1,992 2,880 2,663 217)
of China, ordinary
limited liability shares
company
RBEROTROBERAR REARLAE. 146,008 ARH1992
BREFAR il

The following is a list of the held-for-trading investments as at 31
December 2014:

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong:

Place of
Name of incorporation
equity and kind of Number of
securities legal entity shares held
TR L 2
BRAZEFLHE ETERER sk & A

21. REBERRAANBEIIRZH

NTARZZE—ME+_A=+—HZ#HEES

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. People’s Republic 102,000
of China, ordinary
limited liability shares
company

BERTROERRA hEARLMNE: 102,0008%
BREFAR LRk

Mascotte Holdings Limited Bermudea, 908,703,496
limited liability ordinary
company shares

SHEEEERDA BHEE-BRAA 908,703,496k

LRk
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BERAENK:
MREB LM ZRAES:
Net assets/
(liabilties)
attributable
Interest tothe Cost of Fair Change in
held Company investment value fair value
RARES
EEFE/
frisEs  (BEFE) RERA ABE RABEED
(%) '000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR TER TET
0.0022 RMBG6,912 1,562 1,981 419
AE6,912
0.0022 HK$(1,404) 85,067 118,131 33,064
B (1,404)
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

A brief description of the business and financial information of
the above listed equity securities, based on their latest financial
statements, is as follows:

(i)

(i)

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. is principally engaged in
finance lease, assets management, banking and financial
advisory services in Shanghai, Shenzhen and Hong Kong.

The unaudited net profit attributable to the owners of China
Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. for the six months ended 31
December 2015 was approximately RMB32,976,000,000
(2014: net profit of RMB30,459,000,000).

Mascotte Holdings Limited is principally engaged in loan
financing, trading of investments, manufacture and sale
of accessories for photographic, electrical and multimedia
products and property investment.

No share was held by the Group as at 31 December 2015
(the unaudited net profit attributable to the owners of
Mascotte Holdings Limited for the six months ended 30
September 2014: approximately HK$17,876,000).

21. RERREAARBEIIKZEH
EE (#|)

Rig bt EMBRAR S RIOPZMBERS B
EBENLMBERDT

(i)

BERTRODERATDEIERLE K
YEREENERERE BETE RIT
Ko B 75 BAE AR 7 o

BREBETROBERAREZ2 - —H
F+-_A=Z+—BLEANEAAZHE
EABEREEZEANNHAARE
32,976,000,0007T ( =T — 4 : #LF A
R #30,459,000,0007T ) °

SHEEBERARIZNEENRR
B RERE BHE EXKZHEBEM
Rz oERHE URMERE-

REER-_T—RAF+-A=+—H1
ERFEARD (FHESEERAFE
E-E-NEAA=THIENEAZE
BEABEREEZLF - #4917,876,000

BIT) e
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 21. RERREBAAEBEYERZ2ER
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The followings are the analysis of realised (loss)/gain of each held- ATARBE_T—RAFR-_FT—NF+=A
for-trading investments for the years ended 31 December 2015 ST+ —HALEFESEBIEEEREZEEN
and 2014 (B18R) RBEDW
2015 —E-HF
Selling Cost of Realised
Stock code price investment (loss)/gain
=% 32
Name of equity securities RAZESEZE A3 5% &E RERK (BR)/ K&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx TER TR
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. BERTRHERAA 3968 3,814 4,031 (217)
Mascotte Holdings Limited SHESBEARAT 136 93,957 121,674 (27,7117)
Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited ~ §Z A ¥ BB A R A Al 1076 2,411 2,495 (84)
China Strategic Holdings Limited RHEEERRAT 235 624 548 76
COL Capital Limited FREBKERERDA 383 4,655 5,107 (452)
Auto Italia Holdings Limited ZENZERERLDA 720 3,387 5,042 (1,655)
AirMedia Group Inc ADR AMedia Group IncEBIT85EE S NATNER 1,845 1,355 490
No dividend income of was received during the year ended 31 RBEZT—hAF+-A=+—HILEFEAL
December 2015. B BN AT AT AR BB o
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

The followings are the analysis of realised (loss)/gain of each held-
for-trading investments for the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014: (Continued)

2014

Name of equity securities RAEHATE

21.

RESREAABEIRZEH
EE (&)

UTNERBEEZE_Z—RAFER_ZT—NF+_A
=+ HIEFESERBEFEEREZEER
(&) WSzt : (&)

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. BERITROBRAF
New Island Development Holdings Limited TNERERBRAF
Tencent Holdings Limited BRERERAA
Unity Investments Holdings Limited A—REERERAF
Name of debt security BEBESATE

—ZT—F
Cost of Realised
Stock code Selling price investment (loss)/gain
B2%
BRADR | BREXAK (B8)/ K
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR
3968 60,471 61,087 (616)
377 23,077 33,718 (10,641)
700 23,850 24,608 (753)
913 66,164 33,146 33,018
Cost of
Selling price investment Realised loss
EE RE AR BEERER
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHT

Renhe Commercial Holdings AT IR B R A A
Company Limited
Name of commodities SR

NSI/Silver NS A R
NSL/Crude Oil NSL, &

During the year ended 31 December 2014, dividend income of
approximately HK$26,000 was received from Tencent Holdings
Limited.

10,120 10,150 (30)
Cost of

Selling price investment Realised loss

EE RE KA EERER

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET FHET

(10) 1 (11)

(52) 1 (53)

REE-_T—NE+_A=+—HILEE #
i SR IR A PR A &) U R AR B UL A #926,0005%

dl
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

22,

ANRE REREMERFIR

2015 2014
—E-RE —ET 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Prepayments TET IR 4,782 22,538
Other receivables (Note) H fth FE UL SRIE (H7E) 42,758 42,386
Rental deposits and other deposits Heke REMZE 2,812 4,448
50,352 69,372

Note: Hat -

Other receivables mainly include interest receivables from AFS financial
assets and financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$1,958,000
(2014: HK$1,586,000) and other receivable from an investee of
approximately HK$40,800,000 (please refer to Note 19(iii) for details).

HMERFEIERENREIESHEE 2 EK
FMERRBEREAABAEIEZESHEEDN
1,958,000/ 70 (= Z — P4 : 1,586,000/ 70) LA &
WL E A | 2 HAth FE U SR TE £940,800,0007% 7T (7
BB 2 B FE19(i) )

23. PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE 23. EWFEHEE
On 25 June 2015, the Group subscribed a promissory note of RZZE—AFASNA-+HA AEEREZH
HK$3,000,000 from Wealth China Finance Limited, a company BERAR (RZZE—AFAA—BEEBH
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on 1 May 2015. 5k sz 2 BBR A7) R — 53,000,000 7T
The promissory note is subscribed at 10% interest rate per annum ZHEH IR AN RIBFENE/I0E - BT
with 1 year maturity from the date of issue. The average effective BEffRET—F REIH - P EREFEL AB10
interest rate is approximately 10% per annum. JE20
24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 24, HERBITHER
2015 2014
—2-afF —ZE—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FiBT
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHEER 6,399 14,489
Pledged bank deposits EEMRITER 2,020 2,000
8,419 16,489
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25.

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZ=_—Z

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

Deposits with banks earn interest at floating rates based on bank
deposit and saving rates. The bank balances and pledged bank
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default. At 31 December 2015, the bank deposits of
HK$2,020,000 (2014: HK$2,000,000) were pledged to a bank to
secure trade credit facilities granted to the Group.

WARRANTS

On 3 September 2013, the rights issue was completed. The
number and exercise price of warrants (“Outstanding Warrants”)
has been adjusted. The 17,948,491 Outstanding Warrants issued
on 8 April 2011 with an exercise price of HK$4.5 immediately
before the rights issue has been adjusted to 26,922,737 with
an exercise price of HK$3.87. Details of the adjustment of
Outstanding Warrants have been disclosed in the announcement
dated 3 September 2013.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, 210,526 outstanding
convertible note warrants (“Outstanding CN Warrants”) issued on
22 April 2010 were expired and did not subject to the adjustment.
The amount of approximately HK$409,000 was reclassified from
warrants reserve to accumulated losses. At 31 December 2013,
the Company had Outstanding CN Warrants of approximately
26,923,000 and their exercise in full would result in the issue of
approximately 26,923,000 shares.

On 21 February 2014, the rights issue was completed. The
number and exercise price of Outstanding Warrants has been
adjusted. The 26,922,737 Outstanding Warrants issued on 8 April
2011 with an exercise price of HK$3.87 immediately before the
rights issue has been adjusted to 107,690,948 with an exercise
price of HK$1.79. Details of the adjustment of Outstanding
Warrants have been disclosed in the announcement dated 20
February 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, 107,690,948
Outstanding Warrants issued on 8 April 2011 were expired. The fair
value of approximately HK$89,000 was reclassified from warrants
reserve to accumulated losses. At 31 December 2015 and 2014,
the Company had no Outstanding Warrants.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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26. SHORT-TERM LOANS

26. HHER

2015 2014
—B-AF —ZT M
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FHT
Loans from third parties (Note () FE=ZFER(HZ0)
— Principle — K& - 55,000
— Interest —FIE - 747
- 55,747
Unsecured A - 55,747
Carrying amount repayable (Note (ij)): JEEERmESRE (Ma20m)
Within one year —FR - 55,747

Notes:

@

(i)

The Company entered into loan agreements with a financial
institution amounted to HK$40,000,000 and HK$15,000,000
on 25 September 2014 and 30 December 2014 respectively.
The maturity period of the loans does not exceed 3 calendar
months from the date of loan agreements. The interest rate on
the loans was the Hong Kong Dollar prime rate as quoted by
the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited from
time to time (“Prime Rate”) plus 2% per annum. The loans were
settled on 14 January 2015.

The Company entered into a loan agreement with a financial
institution amounted to HK$30,000,000 on 17 June 2015 which
was secured by a charge over its interest in its subsidiaries,
namely Shine Full Capital Limited, Top Flame Investments
Limited and Up Wonderful Limited in favour of the lender. The
loan was repayable on the date of one month from the date
of drawdown with 1% per month. On 28 July 2015, the AFS
financial assets held by the subsidiaries were transferred to the
financial institution in exchange for partial repayment of the loan
amounted to HK$22,500,000 (please refer to Notes 19(ii) for
details). The remaining balance of approximately HK$7,905,000
was settled by cash on 31 July 2015.

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements.
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(i)

AARE—EMEES BN =—T—HFA
A-+HRBEER-ZE—WNE+-A=+HFL
40,000,0007% 7t %.15,000,00078 7T < B 7 17
FHoZEERAERMZEBHR=REEA
NEE-BERFEAEES EGELRITAR
AR TEFTHRZ B TRERFR ([HEEF
E)MEMKE-ZEERER T —H
F—HF+mBEE-

AARRZE—RAFAA+LHE—HEE
W] S B 3 - 0% & KIE A30,000,000
BT AERABZZARBARARRNE
B & 2 &) ( BDShine Full Capital Limited * Top
Flame Investments Limited 52 Up Wonderful
Limited ) < # = fEHEIR - Z E X IR EX A
HEst—EAgREERE 5B EIES
B-RZE—RAFLtAZ+N\RA ZEHNE
AR AR ESREECEETZEM
HHE - LAEE 3019 B 5% & 2022,500,0007% 7T
(FFHIE RBFE19(1) ) - #REEAI7,905,0004 7T 7
RZTE—FRF+A=+—BUBREEZ-
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28.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

PROMISSORY NOTES

On 21 November 2012 and 11 April 2013, the Group issued seven
and four promissory notes respectively of HK$10,000,000 each to
eleven independent third parties. Each promissory note is issued at
5% interest rate per annum with 7 years maturity from the date of
issue. The net proceeds are intended to be used for investment in
listed securities and/or general capital of the Group.

The carrying amount and fair value of promissory notes at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

27.

ERRE

R-B——&FE+—A-+—BAR_-_ZE—=FN
A+—R XxEBM+—BBILE=FH D BI%
T RO AR EE - &1 A&%010,000,000
BIT B AN BRRIRFENRSEET KRB
THRFREFEEH - PSR FREERAREK
BErEmEFR KA EAERZ —KRES-

EEBERERBRZEEEERAABERN
T

Carrying amount Fair value

FESH ANREE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-Rf —T-WmFE CZE-EF C—TMWF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT THR T

Promissory notes EERE

- Non-current liabilities —FRBEE 108,665 108,367 72,025 77,806

The fair value of the promissory notes is calculated based on the
present value of contractually determined stream of future cash
flow discounted at rate of approximately 12.5%.

DEFERRED TAXATION

No provision for deferred taxation has been made as the Group
had no material temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements (2014: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated tax
losses of approximately HK$450,691,000 (2014: approximately
HK$332,040,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the Group. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of the future profit streams.

28.

EARBZ R BETRRIZLN12.6%RE3R 2
AKRBEROEREZREFE

IEEBL TR

HRARBEEER BB HERENTBHRE
NZEHEeREBERNERHEZR WAL EED
EXEHBRB(ZF—MOF &)

REFRBR AEEZHEFREBELY
/450,691,000 . (ZF—WF : 4
332,040,000 7C) ' Al AREERAEEH®E 2
JIE SR 0% F o F R B LATERI B 18 55 A SRR
SE I B RIEE T IR EE ©

2
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—ZT—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. R A
Number of shares Amount
BB EE nE
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZB-Rf _"T-MmE CZB-Rf C"EQOF
‘000 '000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR T TR THIT
Authorised: EE:

At 1 January, ordinary shares of ®—R—8 BRAEE

HK$0.01 each 00182 LBk 20,000,000 20,000,000 200,000 200,000
At 31 December, ordinary shares of R+-—A=+—R SREE
HK$0.01 each 0.01B L2 LR 20,000,000 20,000,000 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:

At 1 January, ordinary shares of R—A—HB SREE
HK$0.01 each 0.015TT 2 LR 1,592,036 331,674 15,920 3317
Share options exercised (Note (j) BT 2 B (W) 158,139 - 1,582 -
Placing (Notes (i) and (if) BLE (HratmRmeti) 52,086 132,680 521 1,327
Placing (Note (i) Be& (HiztH)) - 132,660 - 1,326
Rights issue (Note () AR (W) - 995,022 - 9,950
At 31 December R+=B=+-8 1,802,261 1592,036 18,023 15,920

Notes: Bt

(i) The subscription rights attaching to 132,640,000 and
25,499,040 share options were exercised at the subscription
price of HK$0.40 and HK$0.56 per share respectively (Note
36), resulting in the issue of 158,139,040 shares for a total
cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$67,336,000. An amount of approximately HK$27,036,000
was transferred from the share option reserve to the share
premium account upon the exercise of the share options.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE T —RAF+_A=+—HILtFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(V)

On 11 December 2015, the Company placed 52,085,920
placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.409 per placing
share. A share premium of approximately HK$19,930,000
had credited to share premium account. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$20,451,000 are intended to be used for
future investments pursuant to the investment objectives of the
Company. Details of the placing were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated on 4 December 2015 and 11 December
2015.

On 23 September 2014, the Company placed 132,679,325
placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.7 per placing share.
A share premium of approximately HK$88,255,000 had credited
to share premium account. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$89,582,000 are intended to be used for future investments
pursuant to the investment objectives of the Company. Details
of the placing were set out in the Company’s announcements
dated on 8 September 2014 and 23 September 2014.

On 15 August 2014, the Company placed 132,660,000 placing
shares at the placing price of HK$0.6 per placing share. A
share premium of approximately HK$76,193,000 had credited
to share premium account. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$77,518,000 are intended to be used for future investments
pursuant to the investment objectives of the Company. Details
of the placing were set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 12 August 2014, 13 August 2014 and 15 August 2014.

On 21 February 2014, the Company completed the rights issue
on the basis of three rights shares for every share held on the
record date. 995,022,471 shares were issued at a subscription
price of HK$0.1 per rights share. A share premium of
approximately HK$82,022,000 had credited to share premium
account. The net proceeds of approximately HK$91,972,000
are intended to be used for investments in listed and unlisted
securities and/or as general working capital of the Group and
for future investments pursuant to the investment objectives
of the Company. Details of the rights issue were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 16 January 2014.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the then
existing shares in all respects.

29. BRAN (#E)

#iaz: (&)

(i

(i)

(iv)

R-ZE—RE+_A+—B ARARERE
52,085,920/% Fie & Bk 17+ Bt & 8 A &R AL
& IR 190.4097% 7t » f% 15 % & 919,930,000
BB ARMD B ER -FIERIBFELN
20,451,000 TR E A A R 2 18 & B 1ZA
ERRBE -MEZFHBHNRARGBHA
—E-RFE+-_AWNBAR-_ZT—HE+_A
+—BZRER-

RZZE—HWEARAZ+T=8 KRAEE
132,679,325 B ER D MEBAETRK
fic & A% (70.77% 7T © B2 17 % B £988,255,000
BB ARDEEBR FIERBFED
89,582,000 TR IE AR Al 2% & B 12
RIERRIEE - BLE 2 FBHN AR R B H
A-T—NEALANBR -_Z—MEA A
—t+=HZRAER-

R-ZZ—MNENA+RB AQAFEE
132,660,000 EE E KD MEEAER
fic & A% 190.678 JT ° AR 17 3% 1B 4976,193,000
BT AR BEER B RBEFEYD
77,518,000/ T IR IE AR Al 2 | & B 1Z
BERKIE B EZFBRHNALQR BH
A-ZE—NENA+=—R —Z—NENA
+T=BAR_E—MENA+RBZAER-

RZE—NF_A=_+—H ARaTKIZ
R EREE B HAFTI5 S AR AR (5 38 = IR AR AR (5
2 EEREITHAY - 995,022,471 ARAR (D 2 IR R
B EE R0 TR TT - BIDHELD
82,022,000/ T E T AR D /@ B AR ° FT1S
TEHEE#91,972,0008 T AR E EH R
ELMESR SAEAEE Y —REEE
S RIBEAQFZEEBZAERRKIEE -
HEE 2 FBEN ARG B AT —ME—
A+"BZRER-

FRABTZAAERDRAETHEERZRE

B ZFHRSEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZ—ZT—RAF+-A=+—HILFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  30. &2 Al Z B ik R &

THE COMPANY

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Assets: BE:
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WE R&E 24,160 6,616
Other tangible assets HMEREE 18,676 21,730
Interests in subsidiaries R B RR Z = 115,357 279,790
Conversion options embedded in MR EBRRNE 2R E
convertible notes 1,039 2,453
159,232 310,589
Current assets REBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ESREE 17,004 13,444
Financial assets at fair value through RESRIEZAAEE
profit or loss R SRMEE 2,663 120,112
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ FEIH 718 - 154 &
H A e k1A 9,552 28,573
Promissory note receivable W H R 3,000 -
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTH 8,419 16,489
40,638 178,618
Total assets EEHAE 199,870 489,207
Equity: R
Capital and reserves attributable to RARHEEABMEBRER #E
owners of the Company
Share capital & 18,023 15,920
Reserves (Note 31) @ (Bat31) 54,454 279,108
Total equity ESBE 72,477 295,028
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 30. XA Rl Z Bk & (&)
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

2015 2014
—E-RHEF —E 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Liabilities: afE:
Current liabilities RBEE
Accrued charges and other payables JE A B S I E At FE A 5ROB 17,577 8,909
Short-term loans HHIER - 55,747
17,577 64,656
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE{STB B A R FIA 1,151 21,156
Promissory notes EHRR 108,665 108,367
109,816 129,523
Total liabilities BEHAE 127,393 194,179
Total equity and liabilities ExRkABEEE 199,870 489,207
Net current assets REBEEFE 23,061 113,962
Total assets less current liabilities EELAERABAE 182,293 424,551
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 REFEeN _T—"F=A=1+—HHERF
March 2016. 1T 2% -
Wong Danny F. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick
a1 RTE
Director Director
EF EF

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E_—T—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE

31. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 3. KRR Z#E
Available-
for-sale
Share financial
Share option Warrants  assets equity Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
AEHE
ARER SREE
ROEE BRERE e BRRE ZRER fit

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TAT TR TR TAT TAT

At 1 January 2014 RZE-mE-A-A 327,093 4,558 89 - (215,146) 116,594
Loss for the year FRBHE - - - - (109,098) (109,098)
Other comprehensive income for the year, — FRE M 2 E Y -

net of income tax BHBAER - - - 472 - 472
Total comprehensive income/{oss) FR2ENE/ (BR) 4%

forthe year - - - 2 {09099  (108626)

Recognition of equity settled share-based BB IR LB I BER

payments T2 B - 24,671 - - - 24,671
Placing & 169,818 - - - - 169,818
Placing expenses RERZ (5,371) - - - - (5371)
Rights issue i 89,552 - - - - 89,552
Rights issue expenses HRAZ (7,530) - - - - (7,530)
Release Upon expiry of warrants RBRIE R b AR - - (89) - 89 -

At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R=F-ME+-A=t—-AL

“T-H%-A-H 573,562 29,229 - 472 (324,155) 279,108
Loss for the year FRNBE - - - - (310,857) (310,857)
Other comprehensive income for the year, — FRE M 2 EHE -
net of income tax [Eiligo - - - 519 - 519
Total comprehensive income/(oss) FR2ENE/ (BR) 4%
for the year - - - 519 (310,857) (310,338)
Share options exercised BT B 92,790 (27,036) - - - 65,754
Placing [ 20,782 - - - - 20,782
Placing expenses RERS (852) - - - - 852)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-5%+-A=+-H 686,282 2,193 - 991 (635,012) 54,454
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33.
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AR B BT IARMT

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

NET ASSETS VALUE PER SHARE

As at 31 December 2015, the net assets value per share is
HK$0.04 (2014: HK$0.19).

The calculation of net assets value per share is based on the net
assets of approximately HK$73,610,000 (2014: approximately
HK$295,992,000) and 1,802,261,000 ordinary shares in issue as
at 31 December 2015 (2014: 1,592,036,000).

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(@) Luxwealth Development Limited

On 9 September 2015, the Group has disposed of the entire
issued share capital of Luxwealth Development Limited with
cash consideration of HK$10,000,000. On that date, control
of the AFS financial assets passed to the acquirer. Details of
the net liabilities disposed of, and the calculation of the loss
on disposal, are disclosed belows:

Consideration received

32.

33.

BREEFE

R-EBE—RE+-A=+—8 SREEZHE
A0.04BTL (ZZE—WF:0198T) ©

EREEFENER-_E—RAE+-_A=+—
Az &EFEAT3,610,0008 T (= —N0
F 1 #9295,992,0007% 7T ) &1,802,261,0004%
(—Z— P04 :1,592,036,000/%) B 317 & @
BRET & -

HEME LT
(@) BEZRARLF

REZZ—RAFALANA AEELER
BRERARARZEHEHEITRA I
% R {8 510,000,000/ Tt o A & &
MEECRZBBRKE -FTHESR
BEFECFBREEBERBZTE AR

BT
EURRE
2015
—E-AF
HK$’000
FHERT

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents MIR& KRS SEEE WEZAE 10,000

Analysis of asset and liability over which control

BAZFBZEERRETH

was lost
2015
—E-FHEF
HK$’000
FBT
Non-current asset kRBEE
AFS financial asset AHHESREE 29,066
Non-current liability FRBAE
Amount due to the Group FEf AREBFRIA (40,010)
Net liabilities disposed of FrtEzBEFE (10,944)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E_—T—AF+-_A=1+—HLFE

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. HEMBATR (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Luxwealth Development Limited (@) BERERBERAT (&)
(Continued)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HENBAEZERE
2015
—E-AfF
HK$’000
T
Consideration received EURIE 10,000
Net liabilities disposed of FrHEz 8 EFH 10,944
Sale loan HEBEN (40,010)
Loss on disposal HEEE (19,066)
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HEWBAGZEELHZAFHE
2015
—E-hfF
HK$’000
Tz
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents AR £ MBS SEBEBE W2 RE 10,000
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. HEMBATR (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Chance Luck Holdings Limited (b) Chance Luck Holdings Limited
On 30 September 2015, the Group has disposed of the R-ZZE—RFNA=Z+H AEBHE
entire issued share capital of Chance Luck Holdings Limited Chance Luck Holdings Limitedz 2 &2
with cash consideration of approximately HK$8 (equivalent BORA - ReREHARSET (BER
to US$1). On that date, interest of the associate passed to 1570) " REE R R 2R ERZA®
the acquirer. Details of the liabilities disposed of, and the RWEF -MEEABZFBRESER
calculation of the gain on disposal, are disclosed belows: wmZEEAERENT
Analysis of liabilities over which control was lost EAEHEZAESIT

2015
—E-EF
HK$’000
FH&xT
Current liability REBAE
Accruals and other payables FENT B A N H A FE S 5RIB )
Non-current liability Eh=N
Amount due to the Group JEf AREEFRIA (6,035)
Net liabilities disposed of &z B EFHE (6,038)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERB A a2 WaE
2015
—E—-AEF
HK$’000
FHEx
Consideration received ERE -
Net liabilities disposed of & aEFHE 6,038
Sale loan HEER (6,035)
Release of exchange reserve o) [ 5 R 648
Gain on disposal & W 651
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. HEMBAR (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Chance Luck Holdings Limited (b) Chance Luck Holdings
(Continued) Limited (#&)
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HEWBAGZEELRAFH
2015
—E-1F
HK$’000
FHET

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents AR & NMIELSEBEB W RE -

(c) Sea Hero Investments Limited and Prima (c) Sea Hero Investments Limited
Power Limited (“Sea Hero Group”) % Prima Power Limited ([ Sea
Herof£E )
On 28 August 2014, the Group has disposed of the entire RZE—NMFENAZFTN\B  AEE S
issued share capital of Sea Hero Group. On that date, ESea Hero Bl 2 2 0 2 B 1T RAR AN o 2
control of the yacht passed to the acquirer. Details of the fEzEHEERZABBZWES T
assets disposed of, and the calculation of the loss on EEEZHBREEBEBZAERT AR
disposal, are disclosed belows: BT
Consideration received EURRE
2014
—ZT—MF
HK$’000
FBT
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents AR & NMIRESEEE KM 2K E 20,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Sea Hero Investments Limited and
Prima Power Limited (“Sea Hero Group”)
(Continued)

Analysis of asset over which control was lost

33. HEWEAR (&)

(c) Sea Hero Investments Limited
K Prima Power Limited ([ Sea
HerofS@ ) (&)

AP EZEEDI
2014
—ZT—mF
HK$'000
FHBTT

Non-current asset FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB KRS 22,050
Net asset disposed of It EZEEFE 22,050
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HENB A aZEE
2014
—FEF
HK$’000
FHBT
Consideration received B E 20,000
Net asset disposed of Rt BEFE (22,050)
Loss on disposal HEEE (2,050)
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HEHBAAZEELHRAFHE
2014
—ZT—MEF
HK$’'000
FHBT

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents AR & NIELSEBEB W2 RE

20,000
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34.

35.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34, REHERE
As lessee ERAMEA
As at the end of each reporting period, the total future minimum RESMBR BRETARELCEHERNHE
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due NZARRFEHRERBRLEDT
as follows:
2015 2014
—E2-HF —T-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Within one year —FR 7,124 6,217
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEENF (BEEEMSF) 8,138 13,474
15,262 19,691
The Group leases office properties under operating lease AEERBLEEHELTHHEERAETYE ﬁﬁ
arrangement and the lease payments are fixed and pre-determined MERENETEBAREA—E2WF (=T
for the term one to four years (2014: one to four years). —OF: —EF) e
MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35. EXBREALIRS
TRANSACTIONS
Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial MRére B mKREMIOAEEEIN REE
statements, for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the —E-RERZTENEF_A=F+—HILF
Group had entered into transactions with related parties, which, in B AEEMEBEATIIVURS ARAIES
the opinion of the directors of the Company, were carried out on REEARZTIRAEE 2 AFEBBIEFTRE
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary course of the Group’s — M AR ETT -
business.
2015 2014
—ZE—HF —ZT-MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET

Consultancy expenses paid to a related party X & FREE A+ 2 B &

(Note (i) (H1az0)) 400 400
Interest income received from a related party = U F8E A + 2 R B A

(Note (i) (Htetay) 372 371
Commission expenses paid to arelated party S FEEA LT ZHEER

(Note (i) (B 52 (i) ) 852 1,996
License fee paid to a related party for use of FLE AR ERBEA L

office (Note (i) SN2 FERTE (A i) 293 1,582

Interest receivable from a related party FEURREE A2 FE (H13E3))
(Note (i) 372 371
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

36.

Notes:

@

(i)

(i)

Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick is the director of the Company and
Beijing Capital Partners Limited (“Beijing Capital”). It constitutes
a continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Continuing
Connected Transaction” in Directors’ Report on page 49.

Mr. Wong Danny F. is the director of the Company and the
shareholder of Premium Castle. Please refer to the paragraph in
relation to “Subscription Agreement” under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in the Director’s Report on pages 46
to 47.

Mr. Wong Danny F. is the director of the Company and the
shareholder of Beijing Securities Limited’s holding company.
Please refer to the paragraph in relation to “Placing Agreement”
under the section headed “Connected Transactions” in the
Director’s Report on pages 48.

35. EXBEALRE (&)

BET

U

(i)

(i)

RFEAERETRARIERERFRAF
([ERER]) 2EF -ZRXFHRIELTR
AFETOASBRSAERER S -F2HE
WEZEBZRE [(FHERERS] — K-

EBEE L ERARE ZEFE RPremium
CastleZ IR - FE 2 K F46E47TAE TS
[BER5] —&h [RBHE] —K&e

EREXERARRZEERIRNESBR
REZERRBZKRR - FL2HFEIBAES
WE (RERS] —fd [REEHE] — K-

Key management compensation FEEEEHM
2015 2014
—2-AfF —ZE—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBx FH&T

Salaries and other short-term employee HehEMmEHEEREM

benefits 5,599 5,154
Employer’s contribution to pension scheme R & 518 Z B EH K 57 65
5,656 5,219

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution duly passed at an extraordinary
general meeting of shareholders dated 27 August 2007, the then
existing share option scheme was terminated, and a new share

option

scheme was adopted accordingly. At the date of termination

of the existing share option scheme, there were no options
remained outstanding.

36.

N

URGOBEBNRZR S

BRER-_ZZLFNATLARTIRESR
RS LEIABBZEBRER ERZIR
BB EIE TR MABEEETE
BRERA - RNIRABRE SRR #]
B RIT Z B RHE -

2
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—ZT—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

With reference to the terms and conditions of the new share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) adopted by the Group
on 27 August 2007, the purpose of the Share Option Scheme,
in principle, is to enable the Group to motivate participants for
their significant contributions to the growth of the Group and to
retain and maintain on-going business relationship with such
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long term growth of the Group. It is important for the Group to
provide for them, where appropriate, with an additional incentive
by offering them an opportunity to obtain an ownership interest in
the Company and to reward them for contributing to the Group’s
long term success and prosperity. The principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme are as follows:

(i) The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed ten
percent (10%) of the aggregate of the shares in issue as
at the adoption date unless refreshed by the shareholders.
However, the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
any other scheme should not exceed thirty percent (30%) of
the shares in issue from time to time.

(i) The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to each eligible participant in any 12-month
period must not exceed one percent (1%) of the issued
share capital of the Company for the time being.

(i)~ The subscription price shall be a price determined by the
directors of the Company, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-—ZT—AFE+-A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(iv)  An option may be accepted by an eligible participant
within 28 days from the date of offer of the option. Upon
acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant of the
option.

(v)  The Share Option Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10
years commencing on 27 August 2007.

On 3 September 2013, the rights issue was completed. The
number and exercise price of Outstanding Share Options has
been adjusted. The 174,720 and 11,670,000 Outstanding Share
Options with an exercise price of HK$19 and HK$1.89 granted
on 28 November 2007 and 18 April 2011 immediately before the
rights issue has been adjusted to 209,664 and 14,004,000 with an
exercise price of HK$15.83 and HK$1.58 respectively. Details of
the adjustment of Outstanding Share Options have been disclosed
in the announcement dated on 3 September 2013.

On 20 February 2014, the rights issue was completed. The
number and exercise price of Outstanding Share Options has
been adjusted. The 209,664 and 14,004,000 Outstanding Share
Options with an exercise price of HK$15.83 and HK$1.58 granted
on 28 November 2007 and 18 April 2011 immediately before the
rights issue has been adjusted to 587,059 and 39,211,200 with an
exercise price of HK$5.65 and HK$0.56 respectively. Details of the
adjustment of Outstanding Share Options have been disclosed in
the announcement dated 20 February 2014.

On 11 July 2014, the Company granted 132,640,000 share
options to eligible person to subscribe for up to 132,640,000
ordinary shares at an exercise price of HK$0.40 within the
exercisable period, under the Share Option Scheme of the
Company adopted on 27 August 2007.

At 31 December 2015, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme was 14,299,219 (2014: 172,438,259),
representing 0.79% (2014: 10.8%) of the shares of the Company
in issue at that date. 158,139,040 share options were exercised by
the grantees during the year (2014: Nil).
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36.

168

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended
31 December 2011 was HK$0.03 each. Options were priced using
a binomial option pricing model.

Inputs into the model

Grant date share price HK$0.081
Exercise price HK$0.890
Expected volatility 88.71%
Option life 6.4 years
Dividend yield 0%
Risk-free interest rate 2.210%
Exercise multiple 1.2

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the comparable companies share price over the previous 331
weeks.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended
31 December 2014 was HK$0.19 each. Options were priced using

a binomial option pricing model.

Inputs into the model

Grant date share price HK$0.4
Exercise price HK$0.4
Expected volatility 90.43%
Option life 3.1 years
Dividend yield 0%
Risk-free interest rate 0.88%
Exercise multiple 2.2

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the comparable companies share price over the previous 162
weeks.

The binomial option pricing model has been used to estimate the
fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 36. LROBERNR XS (&)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

TREBARTDEZRREEMIFARRBRE

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share

options held by directors of the Company and employees during REBEZT—AF+-A=+—HLEFEZ#
the year ended 31 December 2015: g
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Outstanding Exercise Exercise
at Granted Exercised Lapsed Reclassified  Adjustment at price at price at
1 January during during during during during 31 December 1January 31 December
2015 year year year year the year 2015 2015 2015 Date of grant Exercisable period
R-2-5F Ro2-5F R-B-IF R-R-3F
-A-H t=A=+-8 -B-R t=A=1-8
HARTE FRRI FR{TE FRER FREFAR FRg% MR 2R E 2fTRE RiLAH s
(HKS) (HKS) (Note)
(#7) (#7) (Hi)
Directors
is
Mr. Wong Danny F. 73,382 - - - - - 73,382 5.65 5.65 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
EREEE ZETEFH-AZtAR ZEEEET-A-T\BE
S AV I =
389,760 - - - - - 389,760 0.56 0.56 18 Apr 2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
ZE—FNATNE ZE-—-¥NAtN\BE
it S AV e =
Mr. Wu Tse Wai Frederick 73,382 - - - - - 73,382 5.65 5.65 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
RTEEE ZEELH+-AZT\B ZETHEFT-A-H\BE
ZE+ENAZTRE
389,760 - - - - - 389,760 0.56 0.56 18 Apr 2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
“E——%MmATNR —F—ENATNEE
S AV I =
Mr. Fong Chi Wah 73,382 - - - - - 73,382 5.65 5.65 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
REERE ZETHEF-AZFN\R ZEEtE+-AZTNRE
it S AV e =
389,760 - - - - - 389,760 0.56 0.56 18 Apr 2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
“E——4MATAR ZZ-—-F¥NAtN\BE
ZE+EN\AZTRE
Ms. Yang XiaoFeng 73,383 - - - (73,383) - - 5.65 - 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BRERL “ERLET-AZTNR tE+-A-tN\BZE
S AV I =
389,760 - - - (389,760) - - 0.56 - 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
ZE—FNATNE ZE-—¥NAtN\BE
it S AV e =
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen 73,383 - - - - - 73,383 5.65 5.65 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BHELE ZEELH+-ACT/\B ZETHEFT-A-HN\BE
ZE+ENAZTRE
389,760 - - - - - 389,760 0.56 0.56 18 Apr 2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
“E——%MmATNR —F—ENATNEE
S AV I =
Mr. Liu Jin 73,382 - - - - - 73,382 5.65 5.65 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BErs ZETHEF-AZHN\R ZEEtE+-AZTNRE
it S AV e =
389,760 - - - - - 389,760 0.56 0.56 18 Apr 2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
“E——4MATAR “3——5MATN\BE
ZE+ENAZTRE
2,778,854 - - - (463,143) - 231571
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 36. LROBERNR XS (&)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Outstanding Exercise Exercise
at Granted Exercised Lapsed Reclassified  Adjustment at price at price at
1 January during during during during during 31 December 1January 31 December
2015 year year year year the year 2015 2015 2015 Date of grant Exercisable period
R-2-1fF W-2-5F R-B-1F W-%-3F
-A-H tZA=t-H -A-H t=A=+-H
MR ERRIL ERTRE FRER ERENIR ERR MR 21TRE 2iTRE RIEAH S
(HKS) (HKS) (Note)
(#7x) (#1) (Hi)
Employees 11,178,720 - (11,178720) - - - - 0.56 - 18Apr20tt 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
[ ZE-—FNATNE —ZE--F¥NA+tN\BE
ZEHE\AZTRE
132,640,000 - (132,640,000) - - - - 040 - 11Jul2014 11Jul 2014 to 26 Aug 2017
“E-mELAT-H “E-PELAT-BE
ZE-tEN\AZTRE
Resigned directors 146,765 - - - 73,383 - 220,148 5.65 5,65 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
(Note (ij)
BREES (Hii) ZEDLEF-AZHNB ZEREET-ASTNBE
- S AV I =}
779,520 - - - 389,760 - 1,169,280 0.56 0.56 18 Apr 2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
ZE——FNATNE ZE--F¥NAtN\BE
ZEHE\AZTRE
Other eligible participants 24,914,400 - (14,320,320) - - - 10,594,080 0.56 0.56 18 Apr 2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
AfpaEkRsEE “2-—%@At/A ZE-—-¥NAtN\BE
it S AV I =}
Total 172,438,259 - (158,139,040) - - - 14299219
At
Weighted average HK$0.45 - HK$0.43 - - - HK$0.77
exercise price
NEFSTEE 04587 - 04387 - - - 07TETL

170 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2015



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE ISR KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 36. LROBERNR XS (&)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

TREBEADANESRIEE AL ABRE
NBE-F-MEt-A=t—ALEFS

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by directors of the Company and employees during

the year ended 31 December 2014: g
Number of share options
By
QOutstanding Outstanding Exercise Exercise
at Granted Exercised Lapsed  Reclassified  Adjustment at price at price at
1 January during during during during during 31 December 1 January 31 December
2014 year year year year the year 2014 2014 2014 Dateof grant Exercisable period
R-Z2-mF RZZ-RE R-B-NF R-T-OF
-A-H TZA=t-H —-A—B tZA=t-8
HATTR FRRIH ERTTR ERRR FREHHE FREE HATTER 218 2B RHAH e
(HKS) (HKS) (Notg)
(#7) (#7) (Hit)
Directors
f &3
Mr. Wong Danny F. 26,208 - - - - 47174 73,382 15.83 565  28Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
ARELE ZEELET-AZHNB ZZEtE+-B-t/\BE
ZEHENAZTRE
139,200 - - - - 250,560 389,760 158 056 18Apr201 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
“2-—%#WA+/\R —Z-—-F¥NAtN\BE
ZEHENAZTRE
Mr. Wu Tse Wai Frederick 26,208 - - - - 47174 73,382 15.83 565  28Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug2 017
RTERE ZEELET-AZHNB ZZEtE+-B-t/\BE
ZEHENAZTRE
139,200 - - - - 250,560 389,760 158 056 18Apr20M 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2 017
—2-—%#WA+/\R —Z-—-F¥NAtN\BE
ZEHENAZTRE
Mr. Fong Chi Wah 26,208 - - - - 47174 73,382 15.83 565  28Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
FEEEE ZEELET-AZHNB ZZEtE+-B-t/\BE
ZEHENAZTRE
139,200 - - - - 250,560 389,760 158 056 18Apr20M 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—2-—%#WA+/\R —Z-—-F¥NAtN\BE
ZEHENAZTRE
Ms. Yang Xiaofeng 26,208 - - - - 47,175 73,383 15.83 565  28Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BREETL ZEELET-AZHNB ZEEtE+-B-t/\RE
ZEHENAZTRE
139,200 - - - - 250,560 389,760 158 056 18Apr20M 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—2-—%#WA+/\R —Z-—-F¥NAtN\BE
ZEHENAZTRE
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen 26,208 - - - - 47,175 73,383 15.83 565  28Nov2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BHRLE ZEELET-AZHNB ZZEtE+-R-t/\BE
ZEHENAZTRE
139,200 - - - - 250,560 389,760 158 056 18Apr20M1 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—2-—%#WA+/\R ZZ-—-F¥EAtN\BE
ZEHENAZTRE
Mr. Liu Jin 26,208 - - - - 47174 73,382 15.83 565  28Nov2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
Ell- 3k ZEELET-AZHNB ZEEtE+-B-t/\BE
ZEHENAZTRE
139,200 - - - - 250,560 389,760 158 056 18Apr20M1 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—2-—%#WA+/\R ZZ-—-F¥EAtN\BE
ZEHENAZTRE
992,448 - - - - 1,786,406 2,778,854
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZEZE—_T—HF+_A=+—HBILFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 36. URGOABEBRARZKRE (E)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Number of share options
BRiENA
QOutstanding Qutstanding Exercise Exercise
at Granted Exercised Lapsed  Reclassiied  Adjustment at price at price at
1 January during during during during during 31 December 1 January 31 December
2014 year year year year the year 201 4 2014 2014 Dateof grant Exercisable period
RZZ-mE - R-F-HF R-F-OF
—A-H +E+E *ﬁlEJrHJrE
HATIR FRRIH ERTTR ERER FREHRAE g% HATTER 2T E 2B RHAH s
(HKS) (HKS) (Notg)
(B7) (BT) (Hit)
Employees 3,992,400 - - - - 7186320 11,178,720 158 056 18Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
(3] ZF-—FNA+NR ZE-—-F¥NA+tN\BE
Z2—E\AZRE
- 132,640,000 - - - - 132,640,000 - 040  11Ju2014 11Jul 2014 o 26 Aug 2017
E-RmELAT-H ZE-mELAT-RE
S AV I =
Resigned directors (Note (i) 52,416 - - - - 94,349 146,765 15.83 565 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BREES (HHh) ZREHET-AZTNR ZEREHET-A-TNBE
ZE-tENAZTRE
278,400 - - - - 501,120 779,520 1.58 0.56 18 Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
“Z-—£WA+NR “2——-£MATNBE
ZE-tENAZTRE
Other eligible participants 8,898,000 - - - - 16016400 24,914,400 158 056 18Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
AR RE “2——%WA+/\R “2-—%WA+/\RE
ZE+E\AZTRE
Total 14213664 132,640,000 - - - 25584595 172438259
a3
Weighted average HK$1.79 - - - - - HK$0.45
exercise price
MEFITEE 17957 045
The options outstanding at 31 December 2015 had the weighted RZE—RAF+ZA=+—HEKRTHE ﬁ%%f&
average remaining contractual life of 1.65 years (2014: 2.65 years). ZMEFHRTENFHRR165F (ZF—
F:2.65%) °
Notes: Bt -
0] In accordance with the terms of the share-based arrangement, () BB AR D BB 2 2B 2 A& ()5 %30%

(i) @ maximum of 30% options are exercisable from the date of
grant; (i) a maximum of another 30% options, plus any options
being unexercised in (i), in aggregate not exceeding 60% of
total options granted, are exercisable from 28 November 2008,
(i) and the remaining 40% options, plus any options being
unexercised in (i) and (i), are exercisable from 28 November
2009 to 26 August 2017.

(i) On 6 July 2015, Ms. Yang XiaoFeng resigned as non-executive
director of the Company. The share options held by Ms. Yang
XiaoFeng was then reclassified as share options held by
resigned directors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. TEMBEAT
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the RERPKR ARREZEMBAR ZFF BN
reporting period are as follows: ™

Proportion of nominal value
equity interest and

Place of incorporation Fully Paid voting power directly
Name of subsidiary or operation Class of share share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
ANREREGRERE
) NCEEE Bl EEd S ) R 5 EHRRA LR RERL A TEEK
2015 2014
—2-if _ZT-QOF

National Investments Fund (HK)  Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
Limited (*NIF (HK)")

ERERBEREZCERAR  BA Etilis 18T REER
(TERER])

National China Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
Limited (“National China”)

BEPEREFRAR & EER 18T REER
(TEIZ A ])

Top Flame Investments Limited  British Virgins Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(“Top Flame”)

Top Flame Investments Limited ~ £BEZE S Lk E REER
([Top Flame |)

Shine Full Capital Limited British Virgins Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(“Shine Full’)

Shine Full Capital Limited RERLES EER 1% REER
(TShine Full 1)

Victory Eternal Limited British Virgins Islands Ordinary USS$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(“Victory Eternal’)

Victory Eternal Limited KERUES gl e REER
([ Victory Eternal | )

Chance Luck Holdings Limited ~ British Virgins Islands Ordinary US$1 - 100%  Investment holdings
(“Chance Luck”)

Chance Luck Holdings Limited ~ ®BRZE S ERER E REER
([Chance Luck )

Top Onward Development British Virgins Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
Limited (“Top Onward”)

RERREBAR ([RE]) REEIZEHS EER e REZR
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 37. TEMBE LA (&)

Proportion of nominal value
equity interest and

Place of incorporation Fully Paid voting power directly
Name of subsidiary or operation Class of share share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
ANREZEGRERE
WELR LR AR R S B S i B R 13 % 5l BHRRE AR IR E LB TEREK
2015 2014
ZB-1F it Sl

Gold Full Corporate British Virgins Islands Ordinary USS$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
Development Limited
(“Gold Full")

Gold Full Corporate EERUES gl EH REER
Development Limited
(TGold Full])

Delight Hope Investments British Virgins Islands Ordinary USS$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
Limited (‘Delight Hope”)

Delight Hope Investments EERAHE LER 1ZET REZR
Limited ( [ Delight Hope ] )

Up Wonderful Limited British Virgins Islands Ordinary USS$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(“Up Wonderful’)

Up Wonderful Limited KERUES L@k e REER
(TUp Wonderful | )

Luxwealth Development Limited ~ British Virgins Islands Ordinary USS$1 - 100%  Investment holdings
(‘Luxwealth”)

BERREBAR ([FR]) RERLES EER E REER

Essence Sharp Holdings Limited  British Virgins Islands Ordinary USS$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(“Essence Sharp”)

Essence Sharp Holdings Limited B R A S EER e REZR
([Essence Sharp |)

Massive Shine Limited British Virgins Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(‘Massive Shine”)

Massive Shine Limited EBRRHS gl E BAEER
(TMassive Shine | )

Gold Intelligent Investment British Virgins Islands Ordinary USS$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
Development Limited
(“Gold Intelligent”)

Gold Intelligent Investment EBENHS gl Y REZR
Development Limited
(TGold Intelligent )

Vast Spirit Investment Holding British Virgins Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
Limited (*Vast Spirit”)

Vast Spirit Investment Holding ~~ XBRZE S LR 1% REER

Limited ( [Vast Spirit | )
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 15 January 2016, the Company and placing agent entered into
the placing agreement to place 200,000,000 new ordinary shares
at HK$0.32 per share (the “Placing”). The gross proceeds from the
Placing are HK$64,000,000 and the net proceeds from the Placing
are approximately HK$61,000,000 after deducted the transaction
expenses. The Placing was completed on 27 January 2016.
Details of the Placing are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 15 January 2016 and 27 January 2016.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

(@  On 19 June 2015, Up Wonderful, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group, has entered into a share swap agreement
with Co-Lead, a company incorporated under the laws of
British Virgin Islands with limited liability. Under the share
swap agreement, the Group transferred the AFS financial
assets with 21,000,000 shares in Freeman (representing
1.80% issued shares of Freeman) in exchange of 210 new
issued shares of Co-Lead with approximately 5.11% of the
enlarged issued shares capital of Co-Lead. The transaction
was completed on 24 June 2015. Please refer to Note 19 for
details of the transaction.

(b)  The Group entered into a loan agreement with a financial
institution amounted to HK$30,000,000 on 17 June 2015
which was secured by a charge over its interest in its
subsidiaries, namely Shine Full Capital Limited, Top Flame
Investments Limited and Up Wonderful Limited in favour of
the lender. The loan was repayable on the date of one month
from the date of drawdown with 1% per month. On 28 July
2015, the AFS financial assets held by the subsidiaries were
transferred to the financial institution in exchange for partial
repayment of the loan amounted to HK$22,500,000 and
the remaining balance of approximately HK$7,905,000 was
settled by cash on 31 July 2015.

(c)  On 25 February 2014, the loan receivable of approximately
HK$18,208,000 was reclassified from other receivable
to AFS financial assets in relation to the Subscription
Agreement entered on 24 December 2013. Detail please
refer to Note 19.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2016.
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Five Years Financial Summary

hAFIEME

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five AEBBAELRFE XA BERBEMENT
years is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1+—HLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-RF —T—WmMEFE === —T—=—F =—ZZ——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET FHT FHT FHT
Results E
Revenue U 2 (27,193) 56,480 (42,603) 63,591 (152,825)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrEiAr (E518)
) (312,636) (112,941) (117,881) 30,134 (185,468)
Taxation A - - - - -
(Loss)/profit attributable to PAN/NCIEZZS DN
owners of the Company fEfh (E518)
il (312,636) (112,941) (117,881) 30,134 (185,468)
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-RF —TNMF —T—=F —T——F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET FHET
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BESE 199,852 469,018 231,790 279,763 177,376
Total liabilities BEMAE (126,242) (173,026) (111,447) (69,885) (902)
Shareholders’ fund KRES 73,610 295,992 120,343 209,878 176,474
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